
TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: (207) 475-1313 Fax: (207) 439-6806 

November 25, 2019  Kittery Town Council  Council Chambers 
    Regular Meeting 

     6:00 p.m. 

1. Call to Order

2. Introductory

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Roll Call

5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption

6. Town Manager’s Report - 

7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes - 

8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board - 

9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town 
consultants or requested offices.

a. (110219-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to present a Citation to the Traip 
Academy Girls Soccer Team for winning the State Championship.

b. (110219-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to receive a presentation regarding the 
Kittery Community Center Strategic Plan. 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS - 

11. DISCUSSION

a. Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person)
b. Response to public comment directed to a particular Councilor
c. Chairperson’s response to public comments

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - 

13. NEW BUSINESS

a. Donations/gifts received for Council disposition.

(110219-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept a donation in the amount of
$115.00 from Justin Kelcourse to be deposited into the Eyes of The World Fund 
Raising Program.  



b. (110219-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement 
warrants.

c. (110219-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to receive a report on the Cole Street 
Affordable Housing Viability Project. 

d. (110219-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint Susan Goodman to the 
Taylor Building Committee.  

e. (110219-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor
License application from the Blue Mermaid 10 Shapleigh Road, Kittery.

f. (110219-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept a request from Parks 
Commission Co-Chair, Page Mead, to step down from the Co-Chair position to the 
position of Associate Member. 

g. (110219-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint Parks Commission 
Associate Member, George Dow to the position of Co-Chair.  

14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS

15. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS

a. Communications from the Chairperson
b. Committee Reports

16. EXECUTIVE SESSION

17. ADJOURNMENT

Posted:  November 21, 2019 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Kittery 
Community 
Center 

 

Developed by the Kittery 
Community Center Board of 
Directors. 
 

Strategic Vision & Plan 



KCC Strategic Plan  Board Adopted 8/21/19  For Council Review  
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

KCC Strategic Plan Preamble 
 

Strategic planning is an organizational management activity used to: 
 
• Set priorities 
• Focus energy/resources 
• Strengthen operations  
• Align staff and stakeholders to work toward common goals and establish agreement around intended results 

 
This deep planning assesses and adjusts to the Center’s direction in response to a changing environment.  It is used to communicate 
the organizations goals, the actions needed to achieve those goals and all the other critical elements developed during the planning 
process. 
 
The KCC Board of Directors and staff have been engaged in ongoing strategic planning and implementation since the Center opened 
in 2012. As part of this process we conducted public listening sessions, surveys and evaluations to better understand the needs of the 
community and the KCC. Feedback from these sessions was used to create a preliminary strategic plan that the Board and staff used 
in the initial years of operation to grow into the flourishing facility the KCC is today. Thanks to the efforts of so many, a significant 
portion of the preliminary plan has been completed allowing more focus on strategic decisions that will ensure the KCC is providing 
the highest quality programs and services today and into the future. 
 
The strategic plan you are reading now has been revised to emphasize a high-level, long-term view that empowers the KCC to 
visualize the future. Most importantly, this is a living, working document that we will continually measure progress and revise to 
reflect emerging needs and accomplished goals. The plan has been organized into three chapters: Facility & Campus; Management; 
and Programs & Services. It also includes two appendices where you can learn more about the planning processes and review an un-
edited list of public feedback and plan development work done by the KCC Board of Directors. 

 
KCC Vision 

A healthy, vibrant community for all ages and interests.  (Adopted 9/21/13) 

KCC Mission 

To provide multi-generational programs and services contributing to personal well-being and the quality of community life.  
(Adopted 9/21/13) 

KCC Values Statement 

The Kittery Community Center is a place where members of the community can go to nourish body, mind and spirit.  The Center 
seeks to foster civic pride, nurture citizen engagement, and create a place where people can gather and collaborate to grow a social 
contract, a shared purpose.  More directly, the Center is intended to strengthen the Town of Kittery. 

The Center is a safe, inclusive place that welcomes differences, encourages tolerance, and extends compassion and concern 
regardless of age, faith, race, economic class, sexual orientation or gender identification of its patrons. 

The Center is a place for the community, governed by the community and accountable to the community.  Those charged with the 
management, operation and service delivery at the Center strive to be innovative, responsible, forward thinking and guided by 
traditional values such as selflessness, civility, and respect.  (Adopted 11/20/13) 

KCC Board of Directors Purpose Statement 

Kittery Community Center Board members are the keepers of the KCC mission, who will envision, advise and advocate for the center 
and its staff.  (Adopted 05/15/19)  



KCC Strategic Plan  Board Adopted 8/21/19  For Council Review  
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Section 1: Facility & Campus 
Access & Safety, Expansion, Space Allocation, and Maintenance 

 
This section of the plan deals with the physical operation and maintenance of the existing buildings, grounds, 
equipment, amenities, etc. of the KCC campus. 
 
 
1.1 Budget, commission, and oversee implementation of a Master Land-Use Plan for KCC and its surrounding 

campus, to be further considered and vetted by the TOK council, staff, abutters, and the community at large.  
The Master Plan, after analyzing existing conditions, and subject to amendment, will consider and make 
recommendations on such topics as: 
 
A. Expansion of the KCC campus through land acquisition to accommodate future programming and facilities; 

 
B. Improved safety and efficiency of motorized and non-motorized connections between the KCC and other 

local destinations, and between KCC and existing transportation routes; 
 

C. Redesign of the KCC entrance and frontage along Rogers Road to create a more functional and attractive 
gateway; 

 
D. Improved parking and vehicle circulation on the KCC campus; 

 
E. Increased quantity and diversity of ornamental and functional landscapes around the campus; 

  
F. Increased outdoor seating and other structured opportunities for patron use of the campus, including a 

picnic pavilion, a bandshell, etc.; 
  

G. Increased quantity of diversity of outdoor facilities for physical activity and recreation, viz. trails, sport 
courts, fields, and playground;  

 
 

1.2 Encourage, practice and expand the use and modeling of environmentally friendly, energy-efficient practices in 
KCC programs and facilities in the following areas: 

 
A. Reduce use of potentially harmful chemical products: Utilize “green” cleaning products, outside grass and 

plant fertilizers, snow and ice removal chemicals whenever possible; 
  
B. Generation of waste:  Separate and recycle facility generated wastes using best practices; 

 
C. Water conservation:  Utilize water efficient fixtures, faucets, toilets, shower heads. Modify hot water 

temperatures for safety and optimal energy conservation; 
  

D. Electricity usage indoors and outdoors:  Explore the feasibility and use of active and passive solar 
technologies, including solar panels for generation and water heaters. Continue to utilize LED lighting, 
timers, sensors etc. throughout the facility.  Priority should be given to converting existing theatrical lighting 
to LED and to purchase only LED or equivalent instruments.   Explore the use of “heat sinks”, energy efficient 
doors, partitions, windows, blinds, sun shields and shades, higher R factor insulation; 

 
E. Schedule regular energy audits, as appropriate;  



KCC Strategic Plan  Board Adopted 8/21/19  For Council Review  
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
1.3 Based on continued public interest in building an indoor aquatic facility in Kittery, the KCC Board of Directors 

recommends the formation of a Kittery Aquatic Facility Study Committee.  The committee will be tasked with 
exploring opportunities for a local or regional facility, public-private partnerships and other topics central to the 
feasibility (including funding) design, construction and operation of such a facility.   

  



KCC Strategic Plan  Board Adopted 8/21/19  For Council Review  
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Section 2: Management 
This section of the plan deals with the management and administration of the facility, campus, programs and services. 

 
 

2.1 Develop a diverse membership on the KCC Board of Directors who are engaged, effective and able to 
contribute specific skill sets and assistance required to move the mission and strategic goals of the KCC 
forward.   

 
A. Develop board member roles and responsibilities (job description) and policies in order to strengthen the 

performance and practices of the full board. 
B. Explore replacing the current town council practice of appointment new board members to the KCC based 

on the order in which they applied with recommended appointments based on the strategic needs such as 
diverse representation and required skill sets of the board. 

C. Establish a voting youth position on the board to be filled annually by a junior or senior student. 
D. Draft and nurture a succession plan 
E. Conduct an annual board self assessment in order measure performance against identified roles and 

responsibilities. 
F. Establish an agenda calendar that reflects the agenda items necessary to uphold the board’s bylaws.     
G.  Review and amend as necessary, the roles and the responsibilities of all committees to reflect current needs 

and governance structures that are now in place. 
H. Develop and nurture subcommittees to assist with programs, services and operations of the KCC. 

 
 

2.2 Partner with the KCC staff to provide the public, decision makers and other stakeholders with clear data that 
illustrates the overall performance, sustainability and effectiveness of KCC operations and in meeting its 
stated mission. 

 
A. Identify a holistic range of key indicators that can be used to measure all aspects of KCC operations and 

mission (i.e. not just financial indicators). 
B. Develop a process for measuring identified key indicators that includes reporting periods, measurement 

tools and format for presenting data. 
C. Develop methods and identify opportunities to articulate information 
 
Budget & Revenues 
 

2.3 Maintain a responsible and effective budget for the KCC and related programs that is transparent, forward 
thinking and balances community needs with profit maximization.  
  
A. Work with members of the established fundraising arm to establish a plan for enlisting community support 

and public-private partnerships to leverage available resources. 
 

2.4 Support the center in its retention of high-quality employees focused on customer satisfaction and 
productivity.   

 
A. Advocate for adequate funding for staff compensation and development that is competitive with similar 

jobs in our region. 



KCC Strategic Plan  Board Adopted 8/21/19  For Council Review  
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Section 3: Programs & Services 
This section of the plan deals with the programs and services offered at the KCC 
 

3.1  More involvement in program evaluation and inventory; provide cost/value analysis; provide and “eye in the 
sky” framework for programming 
 

3.2 Leverage powerbrokers, stakeholders, patrons as allies and advocates 
 

3.3 Uncover and connect resources in the community to support and evolve programming  
 

 



KCC Strategic Plan 
 

Appendix A 
Public Input 

 

Contents 
 

June 2013 Listening Sessions Invite 

June 2013 Listening Sessions Discussion Guide 

June 2013 Listening Session Participant Responses 

June 2013 Listening Session Participants 

May 2013 Traip Academy Student Workshop Discussion Guide 

May 2013 Traip Academy Student Workshop Participant Responses 

June 2013 Public Input from Voting Day, Block Party & KCC Foyer 

June/July 2013 KCC Vision Public Survey Announcement 

June/July 2013 KCC Vision Public Survey Results 



YOU ARE INVITED TO JOIN AN IMPORTANT COMMUNITY CONVERSATION 

ABOUT THE FUTURE OF THE KITTERY COMMUNITY CENTER: 

“KCC 2020 VISION” 
The Kittery Community Center Board of Directors is developing a strategic 
vision and plan which will shape the operation and future development of 
the KCC and the surrounding land.  The first step in the process is a 
chance for  ALL citizens and  users to attend a listening session where 
participants will work in small discussion groups to share their own ideas, 
needs and visions and then talk about how that impacts the future of the 
KCC.  Have an idea for a new program?  Great!  Want to see an 
improvement?  We’re listening!  Think the campus would be the ideal spot 
for another community service?  Let’s explore that more!  Don’t have a 
specific idea right now, but care about the direction the KCC goes?  No 
problem, we still want to hear from you!              

ATTEND THE SESSION THAT BEST FITS YOUR SCHEDULE 
 

SATURDAY, JUNE 1 FROM 9:30 TO 11:30AM 
 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 5 FROM 6:00 TO 8:00PM 
 

ALL SESSIONS HELD IN THE STAR THEATRE AT THE KITTERY COMMUNITY CENTER 
120 ROGERS ROAD KITTERY, MAINE 

 
There is no fee for participation, but pre-registration is strongly 
encouraged for planning purposes.  Click or copy/paste into your browser  
to register online  http://kcc2020visioningsessions.eventbrite.com/   
or call Kittery Rec at 207-439-3800. 

The listening sessions will use a facilitated, small group, dialogue process 
as a means for people to come together to provide input about the role of 
the Kittery Community Center & Campus in the community.  The dialogue 
is structured around a central question:  What are the opportunities, 
challenges, issues and needs that should be explored in order for 
the Kittery Community Center & Campus to best serve the needs of 
the greater community  through 2020 and beyond?  
 
Participants will apply this over-arching question to four content areas: 
Future development of the existing facility and campus; Programs and 
services; Facility and program management; and facility operation and 
maintenance. 
 
All ideas and information generated at the sessions will be documented in 
a report that will be used by the KCC Board of Directors to development 
the KCC 2020 Strategic Vision & Plan. 

WHY SHOULD I ATTEND? 
 
 The KCC is your Community 

Center; 

 This type of community 
engagement strengthens the 
traditionally distant relationship 
between citizens and 
government, mitigates conflict 
between groups, improves the 
quality of buy-in for public 
decisions, and taps into 
community assets and citizen 
potential;   

 The strategic vision & plan will 
impact the municipal budget. 

WHAT TO EXPECT: 
 

 Interaction with people of all 
viewpoints and with different 
needs and thoughts; 

 A space where all thoughts and 
ideas are valid and worthy of 
consideration; 

 Special emphasis placed on 
hearing views about unmet 
needs and innovative 
approaches to meeting those 
needs;  

 A chance to dream big while 
taking the first small step.  

For More Information Contact 
Steve Workman, Vice Chair KCC Board of Directors 

Voice: 207-451-9279 or by email: workmanconsult@comcast.net 

 

http://kcc2020visioningsessions.eventbrite.com/
mailto:workmanconsult@comcast.net


KCC 2020 Vision ∙ Community Listening Session Guide 

 

Page 1 of 7 
 

KITTERY COMMUNITY CENTER 
 2020 VISION 

 

 
 

A COMMUNITY CONVERSATION THAT ASKS: 
 
What  are  the  opportunities,  challenges,  issues  and 
needs that should be explored in order for the Kittery 
Community Center & Campus to best serve the needs 
of the greater community through 2020 and beyond?  
 

Community Listening Sessions June 2013 
 

Sponsored by the Kittery Community Center Board of Directors 



KCC 2020 Vision ∙ Community Listening Session Guide 

 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Table of Contents  Page(s) 
Welcome  2 
Overview of Today’s Session  2 
KCC Strategic Vision & Planning Process  2 ‐ 3 
Detailed Agenda &  Questions  4 ‐ 7 

 
WELCOME AND THANK YOU FOR JOINING TODAY’S CONVERSATION  
 
The Kittery Community Center Board of Directors is developing a strategic vision and plan which will shape the operation 
and future development of the KCC and the surrounding land.   The first step in the process is a chance for ALL citizens 
and users to attend a listening session where participants will work in small discussion groups to share their own ideas, 
needs and visions and then talk about how that  impacts the  future of the KCC. We will use a  facilitated, small group, 
dialogue process as a means  for people  to  come  together  to provide  input about  the  role of  the Kittery Community 
Center & Campus in the community.  All ideas and information generated at the sessions will be documented in a report 
that will be shared with the public and used by the KCC Board to development the KCC 2020 Strategic Vision & Plan. 
 
WHAT TO EXPECT TODAY: 
  

 A very fast paced two hours that only begins to scratch the surface;  

 Interaction with people of all viewpoints and with different needs and thoughts; 

 A space where all thoughts and ideas are valid and worthy of consideration; 

 Special emphasis placed on hearing views about unmet needs and innovative approaches to meeting those needs;  

 A chance to dream big while taking the first small step.  

 
GENERAL OVERVIEW OF OUR TIME TOGETHER:   
 
Saturday, June 1 ∙ 9:30 – 11:30am    Wednesday, June 5 ∙ 6:00 – 8:00pm 
9:30am  Welcome    9:30am  Welcome 
9:50am  Small Group Introductions    9:50am  Small Group Introductions 
10:05am  Brainstorming Questions    10:05am  Brainstorming Questions 
10:50am  Thinking More Deeply    10:50am  Thinking More Deeply 
11:20am  Wrap up    11:20am  Wrap up 

 
THE KCC STRATEGIC VISION & PLANNING PROCESS:   
 
The purpose of this process is to engage the community in a visioning and planning process that will produce a strategic 
plan for the continued development, operation and programming of the Kittery Community Center.  This plan will then 
be used by staff and decision makers as a road map to assist in the development of capital improvement projects, land 
use decisions, policies, budgets and programming. 
 
Outcomes:  This process will result in the following outcomes: 
 
1. A structured dialogue that is open to all members of the community who want to discuss how they would like to see 

the KCC evolve over the next seven years. 
 
2. A written report containing all feedback received during the community dialogue sessions and survey that will then 

be used as the basis for developing the strategic plan. 



KCC 2020 Vision ∙ Community Listening Session Guide 

 

Page 3 of 7 
 

3. A written strategic plan that contains goals and milestone objectives (the major steps required to achieve the goal) 
that have been prioritized. The plan will be a  living document  that can be amended as needed and responsive to 
point‐in‐time opportunities  that may not align with previous prioritization.    [For example,  if  the  town  received a 
bequest for adding an aquatic facility to the KCC the prioritization of such a goal could be upgraded.]  The plan will 
be organized into four content areas: 
 

 Future development of the existing facility and campus; 
 Programs and services;  
 Facility and program management; and 
 Facility operation and maintenance 

 
4. A process of reviewing the strategic plan and measuring progress which will include a policy requiring the KCC Board 

of Directors to undertake such a review annually. 
 
Planning Process Components:    
 
1. Public Input: Public input will be collected through community dialogue/listening sessions and an electronic survey.  

Both methods will seek essentially  the same  input so  the  real purpose of using both  is  to engage as much of  the 
community as possible by offering them choices of how they wish or are able to participate.  Three listening sessions 
are  proposed  for  the  purpose  of  providing  the  community  with  flexible  opportunities  to  participate.    Specific 
activities in this phase include:  Listening Sessions; Electronic Survey; and a Written Report. 
 

2. Strategic Plan Draft:  Using the report from the public input phase and ongoing plans and data, goals and milestone 
objectives will  be  developed  and  grouped  according  to  the  four  content  areas.   Detailed  objectives will  not  be 
developed  for every goal because of  the  sheer magnitude, but  instead will be delayed until  the goal becomes a 
priority for action.  Goals will not be presented with any priority for this first draft.  The BOD and staff will have the 
opportunity upon review of this first draft to add any goals that were not discovered during the public input process.  
After review the draft plan will be revised as necessary and readied for the prioritization phase. 
 

3. Plan Prioritization:  Using the final draft of the strategic plan the KCC BOD and personnel will prioritize goals under 
each content area.  After voting the plan will be revised and a final version sent to the KCC BOD for adoption. 

 
4. Plan Adoption & Implementation: The KCC BOD will receive the final revised version of the strategic plan for review.  

A  vote  will  be  taken  to  adopt  the  plan  which  will  include  a  process  for  measuring  annual  progress  on  the 
implementation of the plan and a KCC BOD Bylaw revision requiring the board to review the strategic plan annually 
and prepare a progress report.   The adopted plan will then be presented to town council with a request that  it be 
incorporated into all decision making processes similar to how the comprehensive plan is supposed to function. 

 
 
Please Note:  Inclusion of an item in the strategic plan alone provides no guarantee that the item will move forward and 
become a reality.  There are many moving parts in a strategic plan which requires constant adaptation.  Careful attention 
should be paid  to how an  item  is presented  in  the plan.    In  some  cases  the plan may  call only  for  further  study of a 
proposed idea while in others it may call for the implementation of the proposed idea.  For example the idea of building a 
water park on the KCC Campus can be expressed two very different ways: Explore the feasibility of building a water park 
on the KCC Campus; or build the KCC Splash‐tastic Water Park on the KCC Campus.       
 
 
 
 



KCC 2020 Vision ∙ Community Listening Session Guide 

 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Detailed Agenda 
 
20 minutes  Welcome  [Moderator: Steve Workman]   
 

 Today’s Purpose 
 

 Your small group has a neutral facilitator whose role is to:  
 

 Help with the process and keeping time  
 Serve as a reminder of our agreements to be fair and respectful  
 Make sure everyone gets a chance to participate, and  
 Record key information for the Summary Report  

 
This guide is the same for all participants and facilitators. The facilitators will help guide the 
conversation but we are all responsible for making sure the group is productive. Thank you! 
 

 Group agreements for a productive conversation…  
 

 Share “air time” or step‐up and then step back 
 If you disagree, consider asking a question rather than arguing to prove your point  
 It’s OK to disagree, but don’t personalize it. Stick to the issue, not the person who is 

disagreeing with you  
 Speak up if the process doesn’t seem fair  
 Speak for yourself, not for others and not for an entire group (use “I” statements)  

 
 Individual Activity: What does a community center mean to you? 
 
Process Directions: On the 5”x3” sticky label provided write the one word or short phrase that best 
answers for you’re the question “what does a community center mean to you?”  You will be asked 
to share this word or phrase as part of your small group introduction, but if you need more time to 
think you may pass and answer the question before you leave today’s session.  Before leaving you 
are asked to peel the backing from your label and attach it to the large scroll bearing the same 
question.    
 
The KCC will be exploring the possibility of incorporating the words and phrases received during this 
process into a work of art that illustrates the value and meaning the center holds for our 
community.  
 
 

15 minutes  Small Groups Introductions  [Facilitators] 
 

 Please share in 30 seconds or less your:  
 Name 
 One or two roles that you have in the community (parent, retiree, community leader, business 
person, committee member of…, etc.)  

 The word or short phrase you selected to best describe what a community center means to you 
(or the community).  

 
 
 



KCC 2020 Vision ∙ Community Listening Session Guide 

 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
45 minutes  “Rapid Fire” or “Round Robin” Brainstorming  [Facilitators] 
 

Brainstorming  is a  fast‐paced activity designed  to generate as many  thoughts,  ideas or  responses as 
possible from all participants in the time allotted.  During this process there is no right or wrong and all 
ideas are valid and worthy of consideration.  Before you begin please politely ask that voice inside your 
head  that we will call “The Judge” to take some time off so that you and your  fellow participants can 
think and dream big without worrying about  the details;  there will be plenty of opportunities  in  the 
future  to  consider  those  things.    Focus  is  on  the  gas  pedal  not  the  brake  during  brainstorming  so 
participants should  refrain  from  justifying or explaining  their  response unless additional  information  is 
required for clarity.  Also this is not a time for open discussion by group member of any response.  
 
Process Directions: Strap on your seatbelts, this will go fast!  Your facilitator will read the question and 
then ask a participant to begin by offering one response at a time.  The facilitator will write the response 
on  chart paper  so  there will be  a  record of what  is  said.   The  facilitator may  ask  you  to  clarify  your 
response to make sure everyone understands what you wanted to say or ask you to help summarize a 
lengthy response ‐ only summarize  if the meaning of what you said is not  lost.   After the response has 
been  adequately  captured  the  next  participant will  be  asked  to  provide  one  response.    The  process 
continues around the group until all  ideas are exhausted or time  is up.    If you exhaust all  ideas before 
time is up please go on to the next question.  Please remember to refrain from lengthy explanations and 
group discussion during the brainstorming.  If you run out of ideas or get stuck when it is your turn you 
may pass.    
 
Things to think about:  Several prompt questions have been provided under each of the 3 brainstorming 
questions to help get you thinking about how you will respond.  They are intended as prompts only so it 
is not necessary to answer them directly unless you find it useful.    
 

 Question 1    [12 minutes] 
 What do you like about the Kittery Community Center & Campus? 
 
Focus & intent of question: 
This is a broad question asking you to reflect on the existing facility & surrounding campus, current 
opportunities at the KCC, the people, activities, atmosphere, etc.  
 
Things to think about: 
 How do individuals, families and the community as a whole benefit from the KCC? 
 What makes you want to visit the KCC?   
 What programs, services or amenities do you enjoy?  
 
 

 Question 2:   [12 minutes] 
What do you wish was different about the existing Kittery Community Center & Campus? 

 
Focus & intent of question: 
This is a broad question asking you to reflect on things that you would like to be different about the 
existing  facility  &  surrounding  campus,  current  opportunities  at  the  KCC,  the  people,  activities, 
atmosphere, etc.  Remember to frame your thinking and responses about the things that currently 
exist at  the KCC and Campus and  to  think more broadly as you will have a chance  to  think about 



KCC 2020 Vision ∙ Community Listening Session Guide 

 

Page 6 of 7 
 

specific additions on  the next question.   For example, stating  that you wish  the KCC was open on 
Sundays  is perfect for this  level of thinking and you can save any specific program  ideas you might 
have like Sunday basketball league for the next question.   
 
Things to think about: 
 If you could change just one thing at the KCC what is it? 
 What is it like to find parking? 
 Do the hours of operation of the KCC meet the needs of the community?   
 How do you feel about the operating policies or the fees? 
 How is the mix of resident and non‐resident use? 
 What is it like to access to the KCC by walking, biking, driving? 

 
 

 Question 3:   [20 minutes] 
What do you think could be added to the Kittery Community Center & Campus so that it can 
better serve the needs of the community?   

 
Focus & intent of question: 
This question is about what could be added to the KCC and surrounding campus.  Ideas should be 
specific, but do not need to include how the idea could be implemented.    
 
Things to think about: 
 
 What programs or activities are missing that you would like to see offered on the KCC Campus 
(not just through the Rec. Dept.) 

 How would you improve the campus (outside)?  Would you add buildings, gardens, benches, 
trees, etc.? 

 Are there co‐location opportunities with other services (municipal, non‐profit, etc.) which would 
enhance the KCC Campus and meet community needs? 

 Are there opportunities to form strategic partnerships with businesses, other towns, the Shipyard, 
etc. that could lead to expanded programming, cost sharing, new approaches to old needs, etc.? 

 Are there opportunities for land acquisition around the existing campus that would address 
identified needs? 

  
 
30 minutes  Thinking More Deeply    [Facilitators] 

 
By now you have generated  ideas perhaps as simple as adding trash cans to every room to as wild as 
let’s add a water park!  As stated today’s session is intended to be an exploration of new ideas and see 
how people feel about the KCC after one year of operation.  The real work lies ahead of us as we begin 
to  think  about  these  ideas more  deeply.    In many  cases  there will  need  to  be  additional  analysis, 
fundraising, negotiations, compromises, more public input, etc.  These are the things that the KCC Board 
of Directors  (amongst others) will be working on over  time.   Before  that process begins  it would be 
helpful to have each group do a preliminary analysis of one of the bigger, more complex ideas that your 



KCC 2020 Vision ∙ Community Listening Session Guide 

 

Page 7 of 7 
 

group generated.   In other words,  it’s time to take that big  idea and explore the details, ask the tough 
questions, think about cost benefit, etc. that we asked you to disregard during the brainstorming.     
 
Process  Directions:  As  a  group  select  one  of  the  bigger,  more  complex  ideas  generated  while 
brainstorming for Question 3.  While each group may select whatever idea they wish consider that the 
process will be more helpful  if each group  is not analyzing the same  idea.   Now that you selected the 
idea  for  further analysis, take a moment  to make sure  that everyone  in  the group understands  it.   To 
begin the analysis and refinement of the  idea you selected answer the questions below.   Record your 
responses on the paper provided.  This activity is intended to be more of a discussion so it is ok if you do 
not get to all of the questions or  if you bounce back and forth.   Your facilitator will help you to avoid 
getting bogged down and encourage you to maintain an objective balance as opposed to getting stuck 
on just looking at the challenges or the benefits.  If you complete your analysis early feel free to repeat 
the process with a second idea. 
 

 How does this idea address a need in the community? 

 How would this idea enhance the existing KCC and Campus? 

 What is the impact to the existing facility and surrounding land? 

 Who are the stakeholders and decision makers that need to be included in this process? 

 Are there professional services that are required to flesh out this idea (engineers, technicians, 
specialists, etc.)? 

 How might this idea be funded initially and then sustained long term (if applicable)? 

 Approximately how long night this idea take to implement? 

 Other questions the group feels should be addressed? 

 
  

10 minutes  Wrap Up  [Moderator: Steve Workman] 
 

 Next Steps 
 

 Follow‐up electronic Survey – Late June 

 Wrap‐up phase I community outreach  

 Publish Community Listening Session & Survey Report 

 
 Facilitators will be available for a short period after we adjourn if you would like to follow‐up on 
anything that occurred here today. 
  

 Thank you – Thank you  ‐ Thank you 
 

If you would like to discuss something that you heard here today, your experience, add something or take a more active 
role in helping us move the KCC toward its 2020 Vision I encourage you to contact me by email.  It’s Steve Workman at 
workmanconsult@comcast.net or you can reach me through the KCC. 

mailto:workmanconsult@comcast.net


KCC 2020 Vision – Passive Collection – Participant Responses 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Kittery Community Center 2020 Vision Development 
Passive Collection of Public Input  June 2013 

Participant Responses 
 

The KCC Board desired to collect public feedback at various events in town during June 2013.  Events included: Voting 
Day; Kittery Block Party; and on a wall in the Janice Grady Welcome Center (main entrance) of the KCC.  Paper and pens 
were provided, and participants were asked to write their own responses to two questions.  Responses have been 
combined into a single list for each question. 
 
Note:  Responses have not been edited, filtered or corrected even if the response was inaccurate in order to preserve 
participant responses.  Items with a number in parentheses at the end indicate how many times that particular response 
was given.  [Ex. (2)]  
 
 
Question 1: What does a community center mean to you or the community? 
 
 quality 
 community 
 a wonderful place for local entertainment 
 a place to meet with friends 
 recreation 
 affordability for all 
 It means my taxes went up.  Higher taxes and user fees 

mean I pay more than non-residents 
 a place where we can call "our own"-to meet friends 

 community in the best sense 
 opportunity 
 place to exercise everyday 
 a place for community to sit down 
 family  
 health 
 a great place for family to share activities with their 

community 

 
 
Question 2:  What would you like to see added to the building, surrounding campus or programming at the KCC? 
 
 visuals in the workout area-(2) 
 running on the track 
 better building and other security for kids.  Put changes 

police department 
 chess club 
 whiffle ball field 
 a better playground (3) 
 updated basketball 
 rent garden plots in front yard 
 better fields for B'ball, S'ball and/or soccer 
 only 2 handicap parking spaces, more are needed (2) 
 picnic area 
 outdoor and indoor pool 
 hockey rink 
 daycare wing 
 fix up playground 
 book club 
 indoor pool-"ditto" (5) 
 fitness boot camp 
 more classes 
 KCC is a wonderful way to bring the community together 

 more parking spaces-yup (2) 
 more workout/fitness classes at varied times 
 Library!!  Star Theatre would be a great spot for larger 

library programming. 
 more toys, says Emily, 3 yrs. Old 
 Please leave the Rice Library where it is.  Many families 

walk there and cannot get here.  There are enough things 
to do here, leave it for Foreside residents 
 open both days of the weekend so more people can use 

it 
 sailing lessons for kids and adults 
 would be excellent to flood front B'ball diamond (or area) 

for outdoor ice rink-agree (3) 
 swim lessons again 
 running (jogging) allowed on the track, especially in 

winter (2) 
 more activities and classes for children 2 and under 
 gazebo in front field for events and in winter flood for 

public skating (3) 
 keep annex!! Have library build somewhere else on the 

property 



KCC 2020 Vision – Passive Collection – Participant Responses 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 tree w/leaves we purchased 
 art classes, oil painting, etc. 
 bigger library 
 more dancing classes, jazz, tap, all and any 
 tennis courts (2) 
 classes, keyboard and/or piano 
 cribbage night 
 library here, too 
 library (4) 
 an indoor pool (2) 
 bridge club 
 swimming pool (2) 
 the SAFE Program and summer programs 
 community garden, ditto (2) 
 keep KCC open on Saturday and Sunday, please  
 shade outside in playground area 
 not making the KAA or dance hall or library move in here, 

shame on the town for taxing 501 © 3s 
 indoor 
 indoor pool-yes (4) 
 indoor pool w/no chemical filtration system 
 tennis courts-yes (3) 
 archery sessions 

 the library 
 community garden 
 bocce 
 swimming pool (5) 
 badminton sessions 
 arts and crafts fair 
 adult day program 
 bicycle stand by door 
 day trips 
 use of gym facility 24 hours 
 photovoltaic panels on the roof-see Efficiency Maine for 

grant options 
 Spruce Creek access 
 kayak classes 
 music appreciation (open mic) and musical workshop 
 volleyball 
 street floor hockey 
 movies 
 open on Sundays 
 corn hole/shuffleboard courts 
 sailing lessons 
 
 

 











 
Kittery Community Center 2020 Vision 

Traip Academy Student Workshop • May 29, 2013 • 11:30-2:00pm 
 

I. Welcome & Tour [11:30 – 12:00pm] 
 
A. Tour of facility 

 
B. What’s Ahead 

 
C. Group Working Agreements 

 
 
II. Small Group Discussions [12-12:45pm] 

 
A. A Word About Community & Place 

1. The BIG Question: What are the opportunities, challenges, issues and needs that should be 
explored in order for the Kittery Community Center & Campus to best serve the needs of the 
community through 2020 and beyond? 

2. What are we looking at? 
 Future Development of the Facility & Campus 
 Programs/Activities/Services 
 Existing Facility Operation & Maintenance 
 Facility & Program Management 
 

B. Station Questions 
1. What does a community center mean to you? 
2. What is it like for you to visit or participate in a program or activity at the KCC? 
3. The KCC would be great if…. 
 

III. Break Activity [12:45 -1pm] 
 

IV. Large Group Discussion [1-1:30pm] 
 
A. Compare & contrast answers from small discussion groups 

 
B. Possible Projects to support the KCC 

1. How can we get input from the rest of the student Body? 
a. Survey Development? 

2. KCC Fundraiser & Marketing Tee-shirt 
 

V. Continuing our Work Next Year [1:30-1:50pm] 
 
A. What can we put in place for next school year? 

 
 

IMAGINE ∙ INSPIRE ∙ CREATE OUR FUTURE 
 



KCC 2020 Vision Workshop -  Student Handout 
 

Question A 
What does a community center mean to you? 

 
Things to think about: 
 What does it mean to be a community? 
 What is a community center? 
 Who uses a community center? 
 Should a community center serve everyone in a community?  
 What does (or can) a community center do for the community? 
 Is it important for the people in the community to financially support a community center with taxes, program fees, 

donations or all of the above?  Why or why not? 
 
For further understanding: The definition of community.  [Adapted from www.communitytoolbox.org ] 
 
 We traditionally think of a community as the people in a given geographical location, the word can really refer to any group sharing 
something in common. This may refer to smaller geographic areas -- a neighborhood, a housing project or development, a rural area 
-- or to a number of other possible communities within a larger, geographically defined community. These are often defined by race 
or ethnicity, professional or economic ties, religion, culture, or shared background or interest:  
 
Faith community (a term used to refer to one or more 
congregations of a specific faith).  
The arts community  
The African American community  
The education community  
The business community 

The homeless community  
The gay, lesbian, bisexual, and transgendered community  
The medical community  
The Haitian community  
The elderly community  
 

 
These various communities often overlap. Understanding the community entails understanding it in a number of ways.  Whether or 
not the community is defined geographically, it still has a geographic context -- a setting that it exists in.  Getting a clear sense of this 
setting may be key to a full understanding of it.  At the same time, it's important to understand the specific community you're 
concerned with. You have to get to know its people -- their culture, their concerns, and relationships -- and to develop your own 
relationships with them as well.  
 

Question B 
What is it like for you to visit or participate in a program or activity at the KCC? 

 
Things to think about: 
 Do you feel like it is a place where you can fit in?  Why or why not? 
 How does the building make you feel? 
 What are the people like who work at the center? 
 If you participate in the same type of activity some other place how was it different at the KCC? 
 How do you feel about youth from other communities using the KCC?  Should we charge them more money?  Keep 

them out?  Work to include them so our communities have a better relationship? 
 

Question C 
The KCC would be great if…… 

 
Things to think about: 
 What programs or activities are missing that you would like to see in the community (not just KCC) 
 How would you improve the campus (outside)?  Would you add buildings, gardens, benches, trees, etc.? 
 If you could change just one thing at the KCC what is it? 
 Can the school and the KCC work better together to share the center and programs? 



KCC 2020 Vision – Traip Student Workshop 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Kittery Community Center 2020 Vision 
Traip Academy Student Workshop • May 29, 2013 • 11:30-2:00pm 

Student Responses 
 
Note:  Responses have not been edited or filtered in order to preserve participant responses.  Items with a number in 
parentheses at the end indicate how many times that particular response was given.  [Ex. (2)]  
 
Question A: What does a community center mean to you? 
 
 Everybody can use it, funds from play sports, no fire 

department, gathering area, make friends 
 Bring people together, helping the environment, make 

kids stay out of trouble 
 Having fun, making a change 
 Provides an outlet for interests, hobbies community 

interests/issues. Fitness/wellbeing, meet new people 
 Activities 
 A group of people united under one common interest or 

residing in one area.  A community center appeals to all 
of these. 

 Adults, teens, senior citizens, kids, crazy people 
 A group of people working together to make everyone's 

life easier and more important. 
 Escape for boring world 
 Discuss important ideas 
 Where people in a community come together and 

discuss (2) 
 trainers 
 toddlers 
 Solve problems 
 A place to meet new people 
 People 
 Teamwork 
 Common  
 Enrichment 
 Supports small business 

 Social and physical awareness 
 Town improvement 
 Brings people together 
 Everyone uses the community center. 
 Fundraising, more volunteers, have more money raising 

events 
 Archery 
 People shouldn't have to pay taxes to use the 

community center.  The KCC should have a donation 
box. 

 A place that is fun to be where you can learn new things 
and be yourself 

 Teen center.  Old people use the KCC, but if we had 
teens there It can help them [youth] stay out of trouble.   

 A place where everyone can do something that they 
enjoy. 

 Place to come together 
 Teen fun center 
 No taxes 
 Food drive 
 Make the KCC a school again 
 A community center is a place where people come 

together. 
 Where people in the community come together. 
 Yes for $ 
 Some programs, fundraising, use tip jar to get donations 

 
Question B: What is it like for you to visit or participate in a program or activity at the KCC? 
 
 It is fun to come, because there is a lot to do. 
 Compares to colleges 
 Makes (people) feel like they are in a safe 

environment, staff makes you feel more coordinated, 
staff of Traip come, share it with more cities 

 The new people should pay more, and payment goes 
down after one year. 

 Feel more educated 
 People, communities should pay more 
 Other communities should come, because Maine is 

small. 

 People I know don't come to the KCC. 
 If we could set up ways to balance out people's wants 
 Expansions on certain fitness areas 
 Vote with your money 
 Not really easy to fit in because it is usually B'ball 

players or younger kids 
 The broadness of activities allows all people to feel 

accepted. 
 The building makes me feel not lazy. 
 This building is different, because I know people here. 



KCC 2020 Vision – Traip Student Workshop 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 I feel welcome here, like I could do my thing and not 
be bothered, which is how I like to operate. 

 I feel like I could fit in at the gym or fitness room, but 
how would I somewhere else?  Find a balance 

 It has a lot of potential, but it is not as inviting as it 
could be. 

 Small fee for people out of Kittery to have more room 
for the gym and other activities 

 Different age groups (open gym, etc.) at different 
times, may be a combined age group for people who 
want to step out of their comfort zone 

 Rec staff not known by students at high school.  A 
representative to visit school and talk to students 
about programs (monthly), or newsletter 

 This building makes me feel more accepted.  I think 
that we should charge people the same regardless of 
where they are from. 

 The community center offers enough activities and 
variety to satisfy everyone around in at least one 
activity. 

 Break some things (sports) into age groups, designated 
times to play. 

 Blending of age groups, bring people together of 
common interest. 

 I liked the rooms with the mirrors. 
 I think that KCC and Traip should work together and 

make a fitness program for the high schoolers, younger 
kids and older people.  And it should be put together 
by some of the high schoolers.  (There are a couple of 
people who want to get one started.) 

 Have a gymnastics group/program 
 People shouldn't have to pay taxes to use the 

community center.  The KCC should have a donation 
box. 

 
Question C:  The KCC would be great if…… 
 
 Study area like in the Portsmouth Library with cubicles 

and silence so people can concentrate and do their 
work. 

 Intramural sports 
 computer classes 
 The KCC needs a computer lab and adult ed room, 

informational assemblies, chess club, driver's ed 
classroom, map of town, transportation to KCC for 
elderly. 

 The KCC needs a…water park, redo the baseball field 
into a park, pool, dance room, rope course/rock wall, 
wood walks during school programs 

 cooking club even for expectant/experienced mothers!  
 prom 
 movie nights 
 field trips 
 recycle club 
 change the playground-open 
 host drama 
 blood drive 
 more transportation 
 more staff 
 more concerts 
 mic show 
 charity races 
 a rec basketball team 
 climbing wall 
 CPR classes 
 trips 
 tornado 

 old people can garden, greenhouse plants, rain garden, 
rain barrel,  

 water balloons slip n slide, yo! 
 driver's education, please! 
 chickens, let's start a farm 
 bus to the Boston Aquarium 
 wood working 
 shuttle bus to and from here, around town (stops in 

the village, Shapleigh, etc. 
 writing and poetry club 
 Café with music and stuff, maybe even a poetry 

reading 
 Fitness Club-running, stretching, yoga, Pilates 
 new playground 
 recycle bins in every room 
 Dance Programs-tap, ballet, ballroom, pole (not 

related to stripping, contrary to popular beliefs 
 auto mechanics 
 Gymnastics-trampolines, pole thingies, climbing 

thingies 
 cupcake wars, food competitions 
 pool and pool tables, too 
 a massive middle school spelling bee or staff like it 
 another outdoor B'ball court, fix the problem of people 

from other towns, summertime 
 The art thing should be expanded upon.  Like put up 

more or get more artists 
 hike, biking team 
 rob girl scouts 



KCC 2020 Vision – Traip Student Workshop 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 holiday parties (haunted houses, Easter egg hunts, 
Santa, New Years 

 make murals on the walls 
 under 18 parties (14-18) (paint parties, dances 
 cake walks 
 tee shirt making, tie dye 
 landscaping rain garden 
 (more) things to do for community service 
 Bonfires! S'mores, music 
 journalism club 
 rowing team (shelling) 
 cooking classes  
 connect community areas by walking or biking 
 recycling 
 energy green 
 mushrooming 
 experimentation on green energy/living 
 winter transportation to rec from school 
 Iron Chef competition 
 Use the side field next to the parking lot for gardening. 
 Put in a pool out back. 
 have some after school programs or during school 

programs like cooking classes, etc. 
 once a month have a dance for little kids in the theatre 
 finish the flagpole 

 Give students the chance to teach. 
 Battle of the Bands 
 adopt grandparent 
 cooking lessons 
 gardens-flowers 
 community garden 
 sewing 
 restaurant that students work in 
 internships for students 
 display student art 
 trainers 
 Some programs, fundraising, use tip jar to get 

donations 
 No taxes 
 Make the KCC a school again 
 Fundraising, more volunteers, have more money 

raising events 
 Teen [fun] center 
 Food drive 
 Archery 



KCC 2020 Vision – Passive Collection – Participant Responses 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Kittery Community Center 2020 Vision Development 
Passive Collection of Public Input  June 2013 

Participant Responses 
 

The KCC Board desired to collect public feedback at various events in town during June 2013.  Events included: Voting 
Day; Kittery Block Party; and on a wall in the Janice Grady Welcome Center (main entrance) of the KCC.  Paper and pens 
were provided, and participants were asked to write their own responses to two questions.  Responses have been 
combined into a single list for each question. 
 
Note:  Responses have not been edited, filtered or corrected even if the response was inaccurate in order to preserve 
participant responses.  Items with a number in parentheses at the end indicate how many times that particular response 
was given.  [Ex. (2)]  
 
 
Question 1: What does a community center mean to you or the community? 
 
 quality 
 community 
 a wonderful place for local entertainment 
 a place to meet with friends 
 recreation 
 affordability for all 
 It means my taxes went up.  Higher taxes and user fees 

mean I pay more than non-residents 
 a place where we can call "our own"-to meet friends 

 community in the best sense 
 opportunity 
 place to exercise everyday 
 a place for community to sit down 
 family  
 health 
 a great place for family to share activities with their 

community 

 
 
Question 2:  What would you like to see added to the building, surrounding campus or programming at the KCC? 
 
 visuals in the workout area-(2) 
 running on the track 
 better building and other security for kids.  Put changes 

police department 
 chess club 
 whiffle ball field 
 a better playground (3) 
 updated basketball 
 rent garden plots in front yard 
 better fields for B'ball, S'ball and/or soccer 
 only 2 handicap parking spaces, more are needed (2) 
 picnic area 
 outdoor and indoor pool 
 hockey rink 
 daycare wing 
 fix up playground 
 book club 
 indoor pool-"ditto" (5) 
 fitness boot camp 
 more classes 
 KCC is a wonderful way to bring the community together 

 more parking spaces-yup (2) 
 more workout/fitness classes at varied times 
 Library!!  Star Theatre would be a great spot for larger 

library programming. 
 more toys, says Emily, 3 yrs. Old 
 Please leave the Rice Library where it is.  Many families 

walk there and cannot get here.  There are enough things 
to do here, leave it for Foreside residents 
 open both days of the weekend so more people can use 

it 
 sailing lessons for kids and adults 
 would be excellent to flood front B'ball diamond (or area) 

for outdoor ice rink-agree (3) 
 swim lessons again 
 running (jogging) allowed on the track, especially in 

winter (2) 
 more activities and classes for children 2 and under 
 gazebo in front field for events and in winter flood for 

public skating (3) 
 keep annex!! Have library build somewhere else on the 

property 



KCC 2020 Vision – Passive Collection – Participant Responses 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 tree w/leaves we purchased 
 art classes, oil painting, etc. 
 bigger library 
 more dancing classes, jazz, tap, all and any 
 tennis courts (2) 
 classes, keyboard and/or piano 
 cribbage night 
 library here, too 
 library (4) 
 an indoor pool (2) 
 bridge club 
 swimming pool (2) 
 the SAFE Program and summer programs 
 community garden, ditto (2) 
 keep KCC open on Saturday and Sunday, please  
 shade outside in playground area 
 not making the KAA or dance hall or library move in here, 

shame on the town for taxing 501 © 3s 
 indoor 
 indoor pool-yes (4) 
 indoor pool w/no chemical filtration system 
 tennis courts-yes (3) 
 archery sessions 

 the library 
 community garden 
 bocce 
 swimming pool (5) 
 badminton sessions 
 arts and crafts fair 
 adult day program 
 bicycle stand by door 
 day trips 
 use of gym facility 24 hours 
 photovoltaic panels on the roof-see Efficiency Maine for 

grant options 
 Spruce Creek access 
 kayak classes 
 music appreciation (open mic) and musical workshop 
 volleyball 
 street floor hockey 
 movies 
 open on Sundays 
 corn hole/shuffleboard courts 
 sailing lessons 
 
 

 



kittery community center 
2020 strategic vision 

online community survey 

the survey will be available starting June 21 until July 7.   
 

to take the survey type the following address into your 
internet  web browser exactly as it appears below: 

 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/kcc2020 

The Kittery Community Center Board of Directors is developing a 
strategic vision and plan which will shape the operation and future 
development of the KCC and the surrounding land.  The first step in 
the process is a chance for  ALL citizens and  users to share their own 
ideas, needs and visions for the KCC.  This survey builds on the input 
collected during the June 1 & 5 listening sessions. Information 
collected in the listening sessions and this survey will be published in 
a report later this summer 



KCC 2020 Vision Public Survey Results
August 18, 2013

Response Percent Response Count

71.9% 87

24.0% 29

4.1% 5

121

0

Response Percent Response Count

26.4% 32

73.6% 89

121

0

Response Percent Response Count

0.8% 1

3. Which category below includes your age?

Answer Options

17 or younger

2. What gender do you identify as?

Answer Options

Male

Female

answered question
skipped question

1. Where do you live?

Kittery

skipped question

Other

Answer Options

answered question

Kittery Point

0.8% 1

2.5% 3

18.2% 22

37.2% 45

19.8% 24

20.7% 25

121

0

Response Percent Response Count

99.2% 120

0.8% 1

121

0

Note: If the participant answered "Yes" to question 4 she/he was directed to answer question 5.  If a participant 
answered "No" to question 4 she/he was directed to skip question 5 and answer question 6

Answer Options

yes

no

answered question
skipped question

40-49

50-59

60 or older

answered question
skipped question

4. Have you visited the Kittery Community Center at Frisbee Common for any reason?

18-20

21-29

30-39



KCC 2020 Vision Public Survey Results
August 18, 2013

Response Percent Response Count

65.8% 77

42.7% 50

40.2% 47

38.5% 45

32.5% 38

30.8% 36

29.9% 35

27.4% 32

25.6% 30

13.7% 16

11.1% 13

11.1% 13

8.5% 10

7.7% 9

9

117

4

Other (please specify)

Other

SAFE

AARP tax-aide volunteer

preschool

Playground

Private rental

Visit a tenant in the East Wing

Senior program, class or activity

answered question
skipped question

Fitness center

Watch a performance

Open gym

Just to look around

View an art exhibit

Adult program, class or activity

Answer Options

Voting

Youth program, class or activity

Attend a meeting

Special event

Walking track

5. What was the reason(s) for your visit to the Kittery Community Center?  Check all that apply.

Response Percent Response Count

50.0% 1

50.0% 1

50.0% 1

50.0% 1

0.0% 0

0.0% 0

0.0% 0

0

2

119

I usually don't know what is happening at the Center

Other (please specify)

answered question
skipped question

I do not have transportation to the Center

I haven't had time

The programs, classes or activities currently offered do not match my interests

The Center amenities (gym, fitness center, café, etc.) are not something I currently 

need

I do not have the money to participate in paid programs, classes, activities or events

There are limited or no programs for my age group

Playground

I worked there for almost one year.

Informatiion of ideas for kcc direction

theatre performance of "Pippin"

6. Please tell us why you have not yet visited the Kittery Community Center; check all that apply:

Answer Options

Playground

Traip performance



KCC 2020 Vision Public Survey Results
August 18, 2013

Response Percent Response Count

25.5% 28

19.1% 21

19.1% 21

10.9% 12

8.2% 9

8.2% 9

3.6% 4

2.7% 3

1.8% 2

0.9% 1

9

110

11

excess

no idea

None of the above.

Tax burden waste of money

skipped question
Other

Would like to see more for our young teens, like pool and air hockey...

a place that has taken community out of community center.

Welcome.

a great community and cultural hub

Cultural resource

multi-generational

Fellowship

A place for community to sit down

Other (please specify)

answered question

A place for everyone

Community connection

Heart of the community

Health & wellbeing

Opportunity

Builds community identity

7. What word or short phrase best describes what the Kittery Community Center means to you?

Answer Options

Tax burden, waste of money

all of the above apply,actually

0

0.05

0.1

0.15

0.2

0.25

0.3

A place for everyone Community connection Heart of the community

25.5%

19.1% 19.1%



KCC 2020 Vision Community Survey Results
August 18, 2013

Strongly 

agree
Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

I don't 

know/No 

opinion

Response 

Count

22 37 20 6 20 105

21 42 12 4 22 101

35 42 13 3 14 107

9 22 12 6 55 104

13 41 27 6 15 102

29 34 12 4 22 101

14 35 20 5 27 101

14 33 26 19 11 103

19 50 18 5 15 107

29

112

9

allow running on track--especially in winter

early AM hours for working parents

indoor pool

a preschool for the COMMUNITY.  One that allows for children to be PART TIME.  We were customers for two years and then told that we 

answered question
skipped question

Other

More consistent wifi, more add-ons with rentals-projectors, screens, etc.

Don't completely block off the gym for Safe.

Playground open to the public during the week

Answer Options

More parking

Open later on Saturdays

Open on Sundays

Acoustical improvements in rooms

More lounge areas for sitting, reading, waiting, etc.

Improved recycling program for whole facility

Improved sidewalks & road crossings leading to the Center

8. The suggestions below were several offered by participants at the listening sessions for improving the operation of the existing 

center and campus, please indicate your level of agreement with these suggestions.

Traffic light at Rogers Road entrance

Improved landscaping to include gardens & benches

Other (please specify)

Better air conditioning in the fitness area

Upgrade the Nautilus equipment.

earlier morning hours so that we can use exercise facilities before work

active senior center with free activities

charge non-residents for any use of facility; DO NOT charge Kittery residents for anything other than classes (fitness ctr, etc. should be free 

for residents- our taxes are paying for the ctr.)

outdoor recreation: improved hiking trail to Rogers Park and Spruce Creek, kayak lessons/rentals on Spruce Creek, outdoor game areas 

(volleyball, badminton, shuffleboard, cornhole, etc.), pool

Playground updated

building-wide wifi

improve outdoor basktball courts

More hours for fitness center

Rink on the front lawn in the winter and or floor hockey

Computers

Remove sidewalk at ball field for extra parking, remove grassy area at side entrance for more parking

Library

Official pathway to walking trails in Rogers Park (ie Signage to the trail)

a preschool for the COMMUNITY.  One that allows for children to be PART TIME.  We were customers for two years and then told that we 

would have to pay for full time daycare because they no longer want to run a preschool program.  Strongly disapointed in how this program 

was run this past year.  Strongly.

add more outdoor spirts rec fields for kids and adults

Develop the land outback and create more fields for kids and adults to play sports on



KCC 2020 Vision Community Survey Results
August 18, 2013

112
9

Question 8 - Other - Continued

9. Communication is important to the successful operation of the Center.  Please check all the ways that you are most 

likely to learn about programs, activities or events at the Center:

answered question
skipped question

sidewalks and road crossing is in the works

renovate east wing and not consider tearing it down

Better playground.

All things to spend more money, lovely. This is all fine and dandy if private donations pay for it all.

dont take

Posting on website if closed for event or weather

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

0.0%

10.0%



KCC 2020 Vision Community Survey Results
August 18, 2013

Not at all A little bit

Part of a 

balanced 

mix

More of 

this type

Completely 

dependent

Response 

Count

3 16 64 18 8 109

15 15 61 9 6 106

0 5 59 35 8 107

16 23 57 7 3 106

4 6 49 41 5 105

2 6 49 45 6 108

15 19 46 21 5 106

7

111

10

 

Contributions from sports leagues who use the facility that live outside of Kittery

non-resident fees

Other

Let private functions serve alcohol so the center could be mire desirable as a rental for weddings and parties

Charge Non-Residents to use the Basketball Gym and give in town residents a card to use the facility.

Fees for non-Kittery residents should be higher. Kittery residents are paying for it and should only have to pay a small fee to use the facility.

Will Scouting groups ever be able to meet here for free?

charge non-residents for ANY use of facility

Private rental fees

Other (please specify)

Answer Options

Corporate sponsorships

skipped question

Facility membership

Renting office space to non-town entities

10. There are many possible ways to generate money to support the operation of the Center.  How do you feel each of 

the following should be used to operate the center?

Tax revenues

answered question

Program/Activity fees

Grants



11. What programs, activities, classes or special events would you like to see added to the offerings at the Center? 
Answered question 53 Skipped question  68 

 
 Fourth of July fireworks at Fort Foster, Adult Dances, Family Entertainers in Theatre, more use of the theater than just plays  

   
 anything that can support itself  

   
 pool    

 
 More for middle school ages/ teens that can't drive yet  

   
 Kids athletic drop-in sessions, music events, and other things that build a community identity. For example you could do a BBQ 

that had a softball tournament before the music during the summer concerts. 
    

 Allowing alcohol at private events (theater)--could be  a space for weddings, anniversary, retirement parties, etc...  
  

 more Saturday or evening programs - from sports to enrichment - more semi-structured gym activities for the community - dodge 
ball, volleyball, indoor soccer 
    

 surf classes   
  

 a REAL program for the children of Kittery.  A preschool that is part time like most preschool programs.  It was offered two years 
ago.  Then we were assured it would continue this past year- but then we were asked to start paying for FULL time daycare even 
though we only wanted 12 hours per week of preschool.  You have turned the program into a daycare center for people that live 
outside of our community.  In doing so- you have lost a loyal contributor and supporter.    

 More field space for kids and adult teams to play on.  
   

 More College Courses 
   

 Swimming Lessons  
   

 Fall, Winter, Spring indoor baseball clinics for the kids.   
  

 An outdoor ice pond of some sort, flooded ballpark perhaps, for winter outdoor activity.    
 Movies, pool  

  
 More fitness classes  

   
 Hockey and ice skating 

    
 The important age group that is most often overlooked is the pre-teen and early teen years (12-16). The time frame between day 

care and a drivers license is when most kids feel the draw of bad choices mostly because they don't have many choices at all. 
They are often unsupervised.  I'd like to see a way for these kids to have access to the center in a non-membership or fee-free 
program that allows them to congregate at the center, where there are always people and there can be a limited tolerance policy 
for kids that are not courteous and respectful. This can include gym time as well as a space with pool/foosball/cards/other tables 
that lets kids hang out in a safe environment, rather than finding empty houses whose parents are working. this age group needs 
more representation, but I fear asking for another fee for such a limited service will prevent it from happening.  
   

 Not sure. But I like what's happening so far.  
   

 More camps  
   

 Movies 
 

 Computers 
 

 Music 
   

 "The programs offered are not being used. 
 

 The cost is possibly one reason. The gym equipment is sitting there and no one is using it.  It is less expensive to join a gym than 
use the center 



    
 We should consider what is lacking in the area and consider adding those services to the KCC. 

    
 exercise programs, tai chi, community events as fundraisers  

   
 sewing   

  
 Swimming Lessons, lifesaving lessons, babysitting lessons that young people can afford  

   
 "Karate (for younger ages) 

 
 Tennis (for younger ages) 

 
 Golf (for kids) 

 
 Swimming lessons (partnership with another facility to get reduced rates) 

 
 More kids' weekend/evening activities/classes to accommodate working parents' schedules. 

   
 Teen - there are youth classes and adult classes but often the teen/tweens are forgotten.  Computer classes, jewelry making, 

graphic design, etc.  
   

 KCC needs recreation managers that know how to operate this huge new facility.  It appears that the current management is in 
over their heads.  
   

 I would like adult stretching or low impact aerobic classes either in the evening after 6P or early in the morning. I work in MA 
and leave at 6:30A and get back into town at 6P. I'd like a class instead of working out alone. 
    

 senior center   
  

 more music  
   

 More fitness options, especially at night- after 6 pm good variety currently offered, keep up the good work. 
    

 More for middle school & high school age residents; especially on weekend nights....our kids need to have fun; interesting 
alternatives to make good decisions regarding alcohol & drugs...boredom usually leads to trouble at this age.  Offer summer 
programs to teens that they may not have time to do during the school year: i.e.  drama show; music ensembles...these do not have 
to be ""teen only"" adults could be involved also...but should be directed to teens. 
 

 Offer a pottery class 
    

 more programs for kids, a welcome environment for kids  
   

 "yoga and fitness programs offered more than 1 day a week.  
 

 Cooking Classes  
 

 Trips for more than seniors 
   

 Would love to see an indoor pool  
   

 Outdoor recreation:  hiking//snowshoeing trails to Rogers Park, kayak lessons/rentals at Spruce Creek, outdoor games (volleyball, 
badminton, shuffleboard and cornhole tournaments).  
   

 More Youth offerings   
  

 Movies, music events in the Star theater  
   

 theater for kids 
 

 art for kids 
 



 Clubs for kids 
 

 Community Parties 
 

 Movie viewings 
   

 the library- a place for kids to go to do homework 
    

 More family activities   
  

 Something for the teens during summer maybe some fun outdoor events. 
    

 "Gyrokinesis, more yoga, extend barre 
 

 More exercise classes in the am 
    

 classes for learning hobbies  
   

 Anything that includes people in a learning process about Kittery/Kittery Point, including walks with a geologist to learn how the 
land was shaped by nature.  
   

 teenage dances  
   

 None, it's already bloated and costing the taxpayers’ money 
    

 cooking classes, health classes (i.e. Weight watchers), More fitness classes, poetry slams, student coffee houses, health challenges 
in fitness suite  
   

 lectures 
 

 reading groups 
 

 music (classical) 
    

 Diverse programs for kids, more exercise classes for adults 
    

 outdoor activities & youth theater    



KCC 2020 Vision Community Survey Results
August 18, 2013

Response 

Percent

Response 

Count

91.1% 92

8.9% 9

10

101

20

Other (please specify)

answered question
skipped question

library

Other

Allow someone like Coastal Fitness to run the workout room. I think that this would get you a lot more young adults who would 

pay the membership.

not sure, I like it now and it seems it may take away from the Kittery feel if other agendas come into play

The Shipyard and library have no allegience to the town and the goals of the center. this divides the goals of the center and will 

create divisions in mission, etc.

select non profits, or shipyard. caution on this type of activity, may take away from a community center

Not sure, it would depend on what was involved

As it is some of the Navy people are taking over such activities as Open Gym...to the point that student residents of Kittery are 

not get enough of an opportunity to play; also, someone needs to be in charge of making sure appropriate behavior is happening 

in the open gyms as some of the Navy people are loudly using inappropriate language & are very unsportsmanlike

possibly, if beneficial to everyone

Keep the control though...this should be a sponsorship not a partnership.

If you are going to suck the money out of a private group instead of forcing taxpayers to foot the bill, that fine

Answer Options

Yes

No

12. Should the Center form strategic partnerships with other entities such as businesses, non-profits, other towns, the 

Shipyard, etc. that could lead to expanded opportunities, cost sharing and/or new approaches to identified needs?

Strongly 

agree
Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

I don't 

know/No 

opinion

Response 

Count

23 53 6 2 15 99

24 48 15 3 14 104

31 45 12 1 14 103

13 42 19 6 21 101

14 43 21 4 17 99

22 54 8 5 13 102

28 51 10 4 9 102

20 40 16 2 17 95

16 29 21 7 23 96

19

106

15

Sheltered pavilion

Seasonal ice rink

seasonal snowshoe trail around campus

Replace chain link with nicer fencing

Other (please specify)

answered question

Answer Options

More benches & tables

Improved connection to Roger's Park & water

skipped question

library

13. The suggestions below were several offered by participants at the listening sessions for improving the outside 

campus, without worrying about the details of how these would be done, please tell us how you feel about each 

suggestions:

Improved playground

Different types of gardens

Improve outdoor lighting (safety & aesthetic)



KCC 2020 Vision Community Survey Results
August 18, 2013

Question 13 - Other - Continued

improve field conditions to allow for more consistent use of fields for youth and adult sports

A nice community playground in the front would draw people from in/out of town. It would also be safer for families/kids if you 

could see it from the road.

We need something out front going on that citizens see - activities, music, playground, or anything else visual - so that people 

driving by want to come in.

Incorporate a close relationship with Rogers Park and perhaps add benches/pavilion in that area. Use the area to add parking 

for those that use Rogers park

Again, this is just a way to spend for money, the people who suggest these things should pay for these things

outdoor basketball

Question 13 - Other

Playground accessible to the public during the week

more soccer fields

Create more fields for kids and adult teams

does the town pay for Rogers Park ??

The playground is old, falling apart, and unsafe.  I will not let my kids play there.

better, clearer signage for entrance to building. It's not clear to use back of building

put in tennis & good outdoor basketball courts

swimming pool!

Chain link fence should be replaced but just use the nice stronger black coated chain link fencing. Just doing that would be a big 

difference.

At this time. I don't think spending more money will help The center needs to be accessable to kittery residents without a high 

tKittery Needs better playgrounds

should look for volunteer gardeners NOT pay for gardening

Weak Moderate Strong
No 

Opinion

Response 

Count

47 20 33 6 106

36 20 49 1 106

26 31 35 14 106

106

15

14. What is your current level of support for the following proposed additions to the Kittery Community Center 

Campus?

Answer Options

New construction of a library

New construction of an indoor aquatic facility (pool)

Land acquisition adjacent to the campus

answered question
skipped question



KCC 2020 Vision Community Survey Results
August 18, 2013

Response 

Percent

Response 

Count

70.3% 71

59.4% 60

84.2% 85

56.4% 57

77.2% 78

30.7% 31

16

101

20

Seems we are having trouble paying for the new rec center, why would we add more to it until Ops costs are undercontrol--I will 

not support anything that raises my taxes again

Pool would be an amazing addition!

i don't favor the library moving to KCC

should a new library be built, I would want to see it managed by the town and not a private board of directors

Plan on how library intends to pick up a 6,000,000 price tag without going to the voters for a bond

we fund 99% now how much more can we support

Outdoor pool or water area would be great alongside the idea for an indoor pool.

NEVER want to see the Library moved to community center NEVER NEVER NEVER

Competent facility managers and a solid management plan

Management Plan

Cost/benefit analysis

Project implementation timeline

Other (please specify)

answered question
skipped question

Other

Answer Options

Cost estimates

Design plans

Operation & maintenance costs

Impact analysis (existing services/land)

15. What type of information would you need to make a more informed decision about each of the three big ideas 

(library, pool, land)? Check all that apply.

106

15

answered question
skipped question

16. Is it important to you that any new facility construction connect directly to the existing Center in order to provide 

indoor access between the different use areas and/or to preserve the vision of a connected community center?

heard maybe tear annex down not for that at all

do not take down the annex please add on to it

Do not remove the annex

Management plan

Don't need anything because everybody already knows you are not trustworthy and manipulate the numbers

do not take annex down

48.1%

26.4% 25.5%

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

Yes No Not sure



KCC 2020 Vision Community Survey Results
August 18, 2013

97

24

43

Library

26

36

62

60

51

Other (please specify)

I do not support moving the Library

do not spend any tax revenue or municipal borrowing for a pool or "free" library. investigate joining with portsmouth or york 

b f i ti i l t d ll t lib b d th t h ti t th t t th d th i iDo Not Ever Move the Library!!!!!!!!

Fire the current Recreation Director and use her salary!

no burden to the taxpayers

An indoor pool will lead to higher maintenance costs & problems in the near future...we live on the ocean where people can 

swim or go to Portsmouth & learn An indoor pool will be very troublesome & a money pit soon after it's down

39

Other

Library shouldn't burden the town with their efforts to move to the frisbee common complex

cannot afford to move library anywhere budget would increase for sure

dont move the library

will need multiple revenue sources I suspect

Land Acquisition

40

39

54

59

38

Indoor Aquatic 

Facility

36

36

72

60

49

60Sponsorship/naming rights

answered question
skipped question

17. What ways might you be willing to support paying for the construction of each of the three big ideas (aquatic 

facility, land acquisition, library)?  Check all that apply for each.

Answer Options

Municipal bonding

Building reserve accounts

Private fundraising

Grants

Sale of Town assets (buildings)

What ever would work for the town.

The people want these things should pay for them on their own, why do I have to be forced to pay for these things when I don't 

want them? It's really disgusting.

swim or go to Portsmouth & learn.  An indoor pool will be very troublesome & a money pit soon after it's down.

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

40 39

54
59

38 39

Land Acquisition Funding



KCC Strategic Plan 
 

Appendix B 
KCC Board of Directors 

Strategic Plan Development Workshops 
 

Contents 
 

2015 Strategic Vision & Plan Board Workshop Guide 

2015 KCC SWOC Analysis Results 

2015 KCC SWOC Analysis Applied to Strategic Plan Sections  

2016 KCC Arts & Culture Strategic Workshop Guide  

2016 KCC Arts & Culture Strategic Workshop Notes & SWOC Analysis Results 



KCC 2020 Strategic Plan Development ∙ Retreat #2 Discussion Guide 

Page 1 
 

KITTERY COMMUNITY CENTER 
2020 STRATEGIC VISION & PLAN 

 

 
 

Communities already exist.  Instead think about how you can help 
that community do what it wants to do. 

Mark Zuckerberg, founder & CEO of Facebook  
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING RETREAT #2 
 
The purpose of this retreat is to develop the big-picture, 
strategic goals that will form the foundation of the KCC 
2020 Strategic Plan  
 

January 31, 2015  



KCC 2020 Strategic Plan Development ∙ Retreat #2 Discussion Guide 

Page 2 
 

Detailed Agenda 
 
8:00am  Welcome & Logistics [Facilitator: Steve Workman]  
 

 Introductions 
 

 Today’s Purpose 
 

 My role as a facilitator is to:  
 

 Define organization components and terms so that everyone is starting on the same page 
 Help with the process and keeping time 
 Observe group dynamics, underlying issues, etc. and challenge the group to work through them  
 Serve as a reminder of our agreements to be fair and respectful  
 Make sure everyone gets a chance to participate, and  
 Record key information  

 
 Group agreements for a productive conversation…  

 
1. Be respectful 
2. One person speaks at a time 
3. Listen to one another 
4. Share “air time” or step-up and then step back 
5. Speak for yourself, not for others and not for an entire group (use “I” statements)  
6. Seek common ground.  If you disagree, consider asking a question rather than arguing to prove your point  
7. It’s OK to disagree, but don’t personalize it. Stick to the issue, not the person who is disagreeing with you 
8. Self-police cell phone use 
9. Stick to times 
10. Other agreements? 

 
 

8:15am Board Development: Thinking/Learning Styles   
 
 What is it and why it should matter to groups/boards/committees [15 minutes] 

  See Handout 
 

 Four Corners Activity [ 15 minutes] 
 

 Please go to the corner that reflects your primary thinking/learning style as indicated by the Gregorc Style 
Delineator. 
 

 Using your group’s dominant thinking style as a basis you have 10 minutes to answer the following questions: 
1. What strengths does your style bring to group work? 
2. In what ways does your style present a challenge to group work? 
3. How does it feel when you are working in a group where your style is not the dominant style? 

 
 The large group will re-form and a spokesperson from each group will have 1 minute to summarize responses to the 

discussion questions. 
 

 Final thoughts 



KCC 2020 Strategic Plan Development ∙ Retreat #2 Discussion Guide 

Page 3 
 

 8:45am Strategic Thinking & Analysis 
 

The following information was developed using content from two articles: “Strategic Thinking – A Task for All Employees” by The 
Sergay Group; and “Strategic Actions for Learning How to Think Strategically” by Glen Ebersole. 

 
 What is Strategic Thinking 

 
 Strategic thinking is the process of developing and evaluating every decision and action in light of current and future 

circumstances, the direction you want to go in and the results you want to achieve. Every challenge, every problem, 
or every action needs to be assessed in light of the broader context.  
 

 It is not about doing “business as usual” but rather pushing the envelope to see what can be done smarter and what 
else can be done “instead of”, or as an “add on”, that would maximize opportunities.  In other words: It involves 
being able to apply possibility thinking to every situation.  
 

 It is proactive rather than reactive. 
 

 It always involves change, and many times that means profound personal and organizational change.  
 

 It is an acquired skill that requires creativity, problem solving, teamwork, critical thinking and flexibility.  
 
 

 Applying Strategic Thinking to the Strategic Plan Development 
 

 Strategic thinkers are able to see the big picture, as well as how to attain it. This wider framework will better inform 
decision-making and ensure an organization functions in a more integrated fashion and is aligned to the strategic 
goals.   
 

 Strategic thinking implies that all variables are considered - those that pertain to the internal environment of an 
organization and to the environment outside of the organization. Patterns and trends must be ascertained and the 
potential impact assessed so that adjustments can be made in a timely manner.  

 
 It consists of considering every factor that could impact upon, or be impacted by, any decision made or action taken. 

It involves ensuring alignment to the organization’s goals. The potential impact is ascertained so that strategic 
decisions can be made and subsequent required actions planned for.   

 
 The strategic thinkers look at their organization as a whole to assess the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and 

challenges or threats. 
 

 
 Force Field Analysis [ 15 minutes] 

 
The following group brainstorming activity will help you to begin to analyze the forces that are working to support or 
restrain the KCC mission.  Understanding these forces will help in the development of strategic goals to work with 
positive forces or shift restraining forces.   
 
Group Force Field Activity 
 
Using the KCC mission statement the group will take turns answering the following two questions.  The process will 
continue until everyone has exhausted their ideas. 
 



KCC 2020 Strategic Plan Development ∙ Retreat #2 Discussion Guide 

Page 4 
 

1. What forces are supporting the KCC mission? 
2. What forces are restraining (or opposing) the KCC mission? 
 
The KCC’s mission is to provide multi-generational programs and services contributing to personal wellbeing 
and the quality of community life. 
 
 

 SWOC Analysis [45 minutes] 
 
SWOC stands for Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Challenges (threats). This analysis is a useful preliminary 
step in the strategic planning process because it helps groups to develop an honest inventory of the current reality 
inside and outside an organization. The SWOC analysis essentially provides a stepping stone to developing a strength-
based strategic plan rather than the traditional deficiency based planning model.  It helps you ask, and answer, the 
following questions: How do you: 
 

• Make the most of your strengths? 
• Circumvent your weaknesses? 
• Capitalize on your opportunities? 
• Manage your Challenges (threats)? 

 
Group SWOC Activity 
 
The group will take turns answering the following questions, round-robin style.  The process will continue until the 
participants no longer have an answer to contribute.  It is possible to go back and add and it is not unusual for an item to 
be under more than one heading. 
 
1. What are the strengths of the KCC as it exists now? 
2. What are the weaknesses of the KCC as it exists now? 
3. What are the opportunities that exist for the KCC to further its vision and mission? 
4. What are the challenges that the KCC will have to overcome to be successful in its mission? 
    

 
10:00am The Strategic Plan 

 
 Review: What is a Strategic Plan 

 
 Strategic planning is an organizational management activity that is used to set 

priorities, focus energy and resources, strengthen operations, ensure 
that employees and other stakeholders are working toward common goals, 
establish agreement around intended outcomes/results, and assess and adjust the 
organization's direction in response to a changing environment.  

 
 It is a disciplined effort that lays out what the organization wants to achieve in the future, provides a roadmap to get 

there, and makes sure everyone can follow it. Essentially, it is an organizational compass. 
 
 If you want an effective strategic planning process your mantra should be: “vision, mission, and strategy first – 

operations and initiatives (programs) second”. 
 
 
 



KCC 2020 Strategic Plan Development ∙ Retreat #2 Discussion Guide 

Page 5 
 

 Strategic framework  & content areas for the KCC strategic plan 
 

1. Future Development of the Existing Facility & Campus 
2. Facility Operation & Maintenance 
3. Management 
4. Programs & Services 

 
10:15am Strategic Goal Development 

 
 Key Plan Terms  

 
Strategic Goal: Are long-term, multi-level organizational goals that help to convert the broad mission and vision 
statements into more specific plans and projects. They set the major benchmarks for success and are designed to be 
[SMART] specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely translations of the mission statement and SWOC analysis 
that can be used to guide decision-making.  Related terms/phrases you may have seen in other plans/processes include: 
goals, strategic objectives  
 
Strategic Initiatives: Specific actions the organization will take to implement/achieve results toward an identified 
Strategic Goal.  Related terms/phrases you may have seen in other plans/processes include: objectives; action items; 
programs; and initiatives.  
 
Action Item: Specific steps that break the strategic initiative into more manageable pieces.  This is the “To Do” list. 
 
Example: 
 

Strategic Goal:  Maintain a responsible and effective budget for the KCC and related programs that is 
transparent, forward thinking and balances community needs with profit maximization.  
  
A. Strategic Initiative:  Increase advertising and sponsorship revenue by 10% annually from the previous year. 

1. Action Item: Identify advertising opportunities in the facility and on the campus. 
 

2. Action Item: Identify sponsorship opportunities in the facility, on the campus, for programs and services.   
 

3. Action Item: Develop policies and procedures to govern advertising and sponsorships and ensure full 
integration with any applicable town policies/ordinances. 

 
B.   Strategic Initiative:  Increase rental revenues by 10% annually from the previous year while maintaining an 

appropriate balance between private and public use of the facility. 
 
 

 Strategic Goal Development by Plan Content Area [10:30am] 
 

 There is no “silver bullet” when it comes to developing strategic goals.  Personally, I believe it is more like reverse-
engineering because organizations generally have a wealth of ideas which better reflect strategic initiatives in 
addition to results of existing conditions analysis such as SWOC and Force Field Analysis.  The process can be 
simple/obvious in one instance and then require additional analysis and complicated matrices in another. 
 

 We will use the January 21, 2015 draft strategic plan as a starting place.  Some of the draft material reflects our 
agreed upon format better than others while some might need to be re-worked.  Other areas have not received 
much, if any focus so far.  The goal of this process is not quantity [of goals] but impact.     

 



KCC 2020 Strategic Plan Development ∙ Retreat #2 Discussion Guide 

Page 6 
 

 
 The following questions will be used to guide strategic goal development for each content area of the plan: 

 
1. How does this content area link to the KCC mission? 
2. Who is most impacted by this content area? 
3. How visible/meaningful is this content area to the general public?   
4. What opportunities were uncovered by the SWOC Analysis that fit in this content area? 
5. What strengths were uncovered by the SWOC Analysis that could be used to maximize opportunities or address 

identified weaknesses and challenges in this content area? 
6. What and how do programs, services, etc. identified through the public visioning session fit into this content 

area? 
7. Other questions?  
 

 We will spend up to 30-minutes on each content area.  The intent is not to complete each content area, but to 
identify structure, content, etc. that can be further developed and revised over the next two months. 

 
 
1:00pm  Wrap Up  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thank you for allowing me to be a part of your process; please feel free to contact me at 
Workman Management Consulting - Creating Community Solutions for a New Tomorrow. 

10 Bridge Street • Kittery, Maine • 03904 • Office: 207-451-9279 • Cell: 207-752-1506 • Email: workmanconsult@comcast.net 



KCC SWOC Analysis   January 31, 2015 Board Retreat 

Page 1 of 2 

 

Kittery Community Center 2020 Strategic Plan Development 
SWOC Analysis   January 31, 2015 Board Retreat 

 
SWOC  stands  for  Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Challenges  (threats). This analysis  is a useful preliminary  step  in  the 
strategic  planning  process  because  it  helps  groups  to  develop  an  honest  inventory  of  the  current  reality  inside  and  outside  an 
organization. The SWOC analysis essentially provides a stepping stone to developing a strength‐based strategic plan rather than the 
traditional deficiency based planning model.  It helps you ask, and answer, the following questions: How do you: Make the most of 
your strengths; Circumvent your weaknesses; Capitalize on your opportunities; Manage your Challenges (threats)? 
 
Strengths 
 
 KCC Staff 
 KCC Board of Directors 
 KCC seeks public input/feedback 
 The building/campus itself 

• Size of the campus is large 
• Character of the building 
• Unique facility 
• Multi‐functional space 
• Space for diverse interests/activities: physical, arts, 
cultural, mind, body, social, etc. 

• Location 
• Regional attraction – unique niche 
• Proximity to Spruce Creek, Roger’s Park, town centers, 
high density neighborhoods 

 Community support for KCC 
 Has much Potential for: 

• Growth and diversity of programs/services 
• Enterprise/business 
• Development of outdoor activities 

 Brings community together & fosters social connection/ties 
 Broad, diverse & multi‐generational appeal 
 Programming is valued and utilized (repetition/annual/etc) 
 Outdoor preschool classroom 
 Indoor walking track 
 Generates revenue to help support its operation 
 Receives a percentage (30%) of town funding toward 
program & operating expenses 

 

Weaknesses 
 
 Lack of a bigger vision for the facility & campus 
 Lack of a business plan (outgrowth of strategic plan) 
 Financial Impacts: 

• Board understanding the budget and budgeting 
process 

• Budget constraints 
• Unfunded needs 
• Fundraising efforts 
• Balance between free and paid facility use 
• Lack of marketing budget 

 Community unaware of KCC resources/underutilization of 
facility 

 Underutilization of outdoor space 
 Staffing shortages: 

• Custodians 
• Specialists 

 Ongoing building issues connected with age, design and 
rehabilitation: 
• Existing structure creates challenges: 
• Ice falls off roof – dangerous & damaging 
• Maintenance of alcoves & alleys 
• Lack of storage 
• Theater improvements (equipment, access, etc.) 
• Building safety and security issues (access, etc.) 
• Unable to use front building entrances because of 
youth safety concerns 

 Physical layout of campus/terrain: 
• Adequate parking during increasing peak demand 
• No clearly defined “front of the house” 
• Outdoor way‐finding signage and lighting of signs 
• Lack of landscaping 

 Fitness equipment requires regular maintenance & 
becomes obsolete 



KCC SWOC Analysis   January 31, 2015 Board Retreat 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Opportunities 
 
 Implementation of KCC Strategic Plan 
 Develop synergistic partnership within the community 

• Strengthen partnerships with schools, library, etc. to 
find ways to work together, share resources, etc. that 
maximize tax dollars, resources and prevent 
duplication 

• Partnerships with Navy and Coast Guard 
• Partnerships with regional arts & cultural organizations 
(Music Hall, Discover Portsmouth Center, etc.) 

• Use of facility for businesses: annual meetings, 
trainings, trade shows, etc. 

• Community service opportunities for students 
• Volunteer base for special projects/events 

 Facility is well position to respond to/meet future needs of 
Kittery demographics and development 

 Campus site development potential is high – “blank canvas” 
to a certain extent 

 Proximity to trails & parks 
 Bring public access channel 22 to the KCC 
 Growth of Kittery makes it a “quality of life” destination 

• More people are basing where they live on available 
services/desirability – people are reporting the KCC as 
a major reason for locating in Kittery 

• The great exodus from Portsmouth 
 Fundraising opportunities: simple to the complex/large 

• Concessions always open 
• Programming as fundraisers (concerts, movies, etc.) 
• Corporate sponsorships 

 Kittery athletic field master plan development 
 New playground equipment & location 
 

Challenges 
 
 Implementation of KCC Strategic Plan 
 Haven’t identified measures of success for the KCC 
 Financial: 

• Growth of expenses 
• Growth of revenues 
• Town budget is always “tight” 
• Town budget currently supports only 30% of total 
operating budget 

• Balance between paid & free services 
• No fundraising plan in place 
• Grant environment has decreased & highly competitive 
• Providing competitive employment in order to recruit 
& retain qualified staff 

 Maintaining staffing for optimal coverage, skill sets and 
coverage when absent 

 Recruiting & retaining qualified board members & 
volunteers 

 Over‐reliance on volunteers 
 Volunteers aren’t always the best or most appropriate 
answer to accomplishing tasks 

 Utilizing qualified board members for paid work 
 Town Charter constraints 
 Subset of Kittery residents not supportive of KCC 
 Perceived competition between KCC and other 
organizations 

 Differing opinions about what to do with facility & campus 
opportunities/potential 

 Unclear KCC Arts & Culture Subcommittee 
structure/purpose 

 Need for fresh/creative programs 
 Growing audience/users 
 Board participation at KCC events 
 

 
 



Applying SWOC Analysis to Section I: Facility & Campus of the KCC Strategic Plan 
 

Strengths 
 The building/campus itself 

• Size of the campus is large 
• Character of the building 
• Unique facility 
• Multi-functional space 
• Space for diverse interests/activities: physical, arts, 

cultural, mind, body, social, etc. 
• Location 
• Regional attraction – unique niche 
• Proximity to Spruce Creek, Roger’s Park, town centers, 

high density neighborhoods 
 

Weaknesses 
 Financial Impacts: 

• Budget constraints 
• Unfunded needs 

 Staffing shortages: 
• Custodians 

 Ongoing building issues connected with age, design and 
rehabilitation: 
• Existing structure creates challenges: 
• Ice falls off roof – dangerous & damaging 
• Maintenance of alcoves & alleys 
• Lack of storage 
• Theater improvements (equipment, access, etc.) 
• Building safety and security issues (access, etc.) 
• Unable to use front building entrances because of youth 

safety concerns 
 Physical layout of campus/terrain:  

• Adequate parking during increasing peak demand  
• No clearly defined “front of the house” 
• Outdoor way-finding signage and lighting of signs 
• Lack of landscaping 

 Fitness equipment requires regular maintenance & becomes 
obsolete 

Opportunities 
 Kittery athletic field master plan development 
 New playground equipment & location 

 

Challenges 
 Financial: 

• Growth of expenses 
• Town budget is always “tight” 
• Town budget currently supports only 30% of total 

operating budget 
 

 
 



Applying SWOC Analysis to Section II: Management of KCC Strategic Plan 
 

Strengths 
 KCC Staff 
 KCC Board of Directors 
 KCC seeks public input/feedback 
 Community support for KCC 
 Generates revenue to help support its operation 
 Receives a percentage (30%) of town funding toward program 

& operating expenses 

Weaknesses 
 Lack of a bigger vision for the facility & campus 
 Lack of a business plan (outgrowth of strategic plan) 
 Financial Impacts: 

• Board understanding the budget and budgeting process 
• Budget constraints 
• Unfunded needs 
• Fundraising efforts 
• Balance between free and paid facility use 
• Lack of marketing budget 

 Community unaware of KCC resources/underutilization of 
facility 

 Underutilization of outdoor space 
 Staffing shortages: 

• Custodians 
• Specialists 

 
Opportunities 

 Implementation of KCC Strategic Plan 
 Develop synergistic partnership within the community 

• Strengthen partnerships with schools, library, etc. to find 
ways to work together, share resources, etc. that 
maximize tax dollars, resources and prevent duplication 

• Partnerships with Navy and Coast Guard 
• Partnerships with regional arts & cultural organizations 

(Music Hall, Discover Portsmouth Center, etc.) 
• Use of facility for businesses: annual meetings, trainings, 

trade shows, etc. 
• Community service opportunities for students 
• Volunteer base for special projects/events 

 Fundraising opportunities: simple to the complex/large 
• Concessions always open 
• Programming as fundraisers (concerts, movies, etc.) 
• Corporate sponsorships 

 Kittery athletic field master plan development 

Challenges 
 Implementation of KCC Strategic Plan 
 Haven’t identified measures of success for the KCC 
 Financial: 

• Growth of expenses 
• Growth of revenues 
• Town budget is always “tight” 
• Town budget currently supports only 30% of total 

operating budget 
• Balance between paid & free services 
• No fundraising plan in place 
• Grant environment has decreased & highly competitive 
• Providing competitive employment in order to recruit & 

retain qualified staff 
 Maintaining staffing for optimal coverage, skill sets and 

coverage when absent 
 Recruiting & retaining qualified board members & volunteers 
 Over-reliance on volunteers 
 Volunteers aren’t always the best or most appropriate answer 

to accomplishing tasks 
 Utilizing qualified board members for paid work 
 Town Charter constraints 
 Subset of Kittery residents not supportive of KCC 
 Perceived competition between KCC and other organizations 
 Unclear KCC Arts & Culture Subcommittee structure/purpose 
 Growing audience/users 
 Board participation at KCC events 

 



Applying SWOC Analysis to Section III – Programs & Services of Strategic Plan 
 

Strengths 
 KCC Staff 
 KCC Board of Directors 
 KCC seeks public input/feedback 
 The building/campus itself 

• Size of the campus is large 
• Unique facility 
• Multi-functional space 
• Space for diverse interests/activities: physical, arts, 

cultural, mind, body, social, etc. 
• Location 
• Regional attraction – unique niche 
• Proximity to Spruce Creek, Roger’s Park, town centers, 

high density neighborhoods 
 Community support for KCC 
 Has much Potential for: 

• Growth and diversity of programs/services 
• Development of outdoor activities 

 Brings community together & fosters social connection/ties 
 Broad, diverse & multi-generational appeal 
 Programming is valued and utilized (repetition/annual/etc) 
 Outdoor preschool classroom 
 Indoor walking track 
 Generates revenue to help support its operation 

Receives a percentage (30%) of town funding toward program 
& operating expenses 
 

Weaknesses 
 Lack of a bigger vision for the facility & campus 
 Financial Impacts: 

• Budget constraints 
• Unfunded needs 

 Community unaware of KCC resources/underutilization 
 Underutilization of outdoor space 
 Fitness equipment requires regular maintenance & becomes 

obsolete 
 Staffing shortages: 

• Specialists 
 Ongoing building issues connected with age, design and 

rehabilitation: 
• Theater improvements (equipment, access, etc.) 

 

Opportunities 
 Implementation of KCC Strategic Plan 
 Develop synergistic partnership within the community 

• Strengthen partnerships with schools, library, etc. to find 
ways to work together, share resources, etc. that 
maximize tax dollars, resources and prevent duplication 

• Partnerships with Navy and Coast Guard 
• Partnerships with regional arts & cultural organizations 

(Music Hall, Discover Portsmouth Center, etc.) 
 Facility is well position to respond to/meet future needs of 

Kittery demographics and development 
 Campus site development potential is high – “blank canvas” to 

a certain extent 
 Proximity to trails & parks 
 Bring public access channel 22 to the KCC 
 Growth of Kittery makes it a “quality of life” destination 

• More people are basing where they live on available 
services/desirability – people are reporting the KCC as a 
major reason for locating in Kittery 

 Fundraising opportunities: simple to the complex/large 
• Programming as fundraisers (concerts, movies, etc.) 
• Corporate sponsorships 

 Kittery athletic field master plan development 
 New playground equipment & location 

 

Challenges 
 Implementation of KCC Strategic Plan 
 Haven’t identified measures of success for the KCC 
 Financial: 

• Growth of expenses 
• Growth of revenues 
• Town budget is always “tight” 
• Town budget currently supports only 30% of total 

operating budget 
• Balance between paid & free services 
• No fundraising plan in place 
• Grant environment has decreased & highly competitive 

 Maintaining staffing for optimal coverage, skill sets and 
coverage when absent 

 Recruiting & retaining qualified board members & volunteers 
 Over-reliance on volunteers 
 Perceived competition between KCC and other organizations 
 Differing opinions about what to do with facility & campus 

opportunities/potential 
 Unclear KCC Arts & Culture Subcommittee structure/purpose 
 Need for fresh/creative programs 
 Growing audience/users 

 

 



Kittery Community Center ∙ Arts & Culture Workshop  Discussion Guide 1-9-16 

Page 1 
 

 
KITTERY COMMUNITY CENTER 

 

 

STRATEGIC WORKSHOP 
JANUARY 9, 2016 

 
The purpose of this workshop is to explore the ways in 
which the incorporation of arts & culture can be 
maximized at the KCC and to identify & develop the 
resources and infrastructure that will make that possible.    
 

  



Kittery Community Center ∙ Arts & Culture Workshop  Discussion Guide 1-9-16 

Page 2 
 

Detailed Agenda 
 
8:00am  Welcome & Logistics [Facilitator: Steve Workman]  
 
 Introductions 

 
 Today’s Purpose 

 
 My role as a facilitator is to:  

 
 Define organization components and terms so that everyone is starting on the same page 
 Help with the process and keeping time 
 Observe group dynamics, underlying issues, etc. and challenge the group to work through them  
 Serve as a reminder of our agreements to be fair and respectful  
 Make sure everyone gets a chance to participate, and  
 Record key information  

 
 Group agreements for a productive conversation…  

 
1. Be respectful 
2. One person speaks at a time 
3. Listen to one another 
4. Share “air time” or step-up and then step back 
5. Speak for yourself, not for others and not for an entire group (use “I” statements)  
6. Seek common ground.  If you disagree, consider asking a question rather than arguing to prove your point  
7. It’s OK to disagree, but don’t personalize it. Stick to the issue, not the person who is disagreeing with you 
8. Self-police cell phone use 
9. Stick to times 
10. Other agreements? 

 
 

8:20am KCC BOD Business [10 minutes] 
 
 
8:30am KCC Arts & Culture Spotlight [15 minutes] 

 
Before we start to plan for the future of arts & cultural activities at the KCC it is important to take inventory of what has 
been accomplished.  
 
The focus of this activity is the organization itself without regard to personal participation or judgment. 
 
Group Brainstorm Activity: As quickly as possible and with no editorializing, the group will take turns adding one 
accomplishment that SEAREI has made since its incorporation.  This should include organizational development, 
projects, collaborations, awards, etc.   
 
 
8:45am Arts & Culture SWOC Analysis [45 minutes] 
 
SWOC stands for Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Challenges (threats). This analysis is a useful preliminary 
step in the strategic planning process because it helps groups to develop an honest inventory of the current reality 
inside and outside an organization. The SWOC analysis essentially provides a stepping stone to developing a strength-



Kittery Community Center ∙ Arts & Culture Workshop  Discussion Guide 1-9-16 

Page 3 
 

based strategic plan rather than the traditional deficiency based planning model.  It helps you ask, and answer, the 
following questions: How do you: 
 

• Make the most of your strengths? 
• Circumvent your weaknesses? 
• Capitalize on your opportunities? 
• Manage your Challenges (threats)? 

 
Group SWOC Activity 
The group will take turns answering the following questions, round-robin style.  The process will continue until the 
participants no longer have an answer to contribute.  It is possible to go back and add and it is not unusual for an item to 
be under more than one heading. 
 
1. What are the strengths of the KCC A&C offerings as they exist now? 
2. What are the weaknesses of the KCC A&C offerings as they exist now? 
3. What are the opportunities that exist for the KCC to further its A&C offerings? 
4. What are the challenges that the KCC will have to overcome to be successful creating a vibrant A&C program? 
    
 
9:45am Deep Discussion Questions 

 
The following discussion topics are the core reasons why we are here today.  They almost exclusively deal with 
developing the mechanisms/infrastructure that will be required to advance the arts and cultural opportunities at the 
KCC.  The emphasis here is on structure not content.  In other words, I will limit brainstorming/discussion about specific 
shows, artists, etc. unless it directly relates to building the infrastructure required to successfully offer such content.   
  
 
 Structure & Role of the Arts & Culture Committee 
 
 Committee was established by the Frisbee Revitalization Committee and predates the KCC BOD 
 Committee was very instrumental in planning and fundraising of arts components of the KCC; especially the 

theater and gallery. 
 Committee’s ongoing role has been ambiguous at times and the relationship between KCC BOD inconsistent and 

underutilized. 
 Certain tasks such as gallery management may have exceeded the capacity of committee volunteers 
 The Committee has been most focused on visual arts in recent years and very limited with regard to theater 

operations 
 

Questions to Answer:  
 
1. What should the focus of the committee be? – Visual arts? Theater management?  Artist recruitment? Other? 
2. Should committee volunteers be responsible for day-to-day management of things like the gallery or is that a task 

better suited for a paid staff person? 
3. How can the communication and structure be improved between the KCC BOD, KCC Staff and the committee? 
4. Other? 
  
 
 
 

 Role and Relationship of Harbor Light Stage, Inc. and KCC 
 



Kittery Community Center ∙ Arts & Culture Workshop  Discussion Guide 1-9-16 

Page 4 
 

 The board of Kent Stephens’ STAGE FORCE, which is an assumed identity of the Maine not-for-profit corporation 
Harbor Light Stage, Inc., has agreed to redirect the activities of the corporation to support arts & cultural programs 
and space at the KCC.  The board of the KCC BOD has voted to accept this offer.   

 
 As fiscal agent for KCC, Harbor Light Stage, Inc. maintains a brokerage account at Wells Fargo which is currently 

being drawn down to support improvements to cultural space at KCC. 
 

Questions to Answer:  
 
1. What role(s) will Harbor Light Stage assume in support of the KCC?  
2. What is the operational structure of HLS? – Board composition, staff, etc? 
3. What structures will be put in place to directly link/codify the relationship between KCC & HLS? 
4. Other? 

 
 
 Arts & Cultural staff position 
 
 The concept of a paid position that focuses on the promotion and management of specific cultural activities at the 

KCC has been discussed for a couple of years. 
 
 Experience to date suggests that increased use of KCC cultural spaces and the significant opportunity to expand 

cultural offerings in support of the KCC mission and maximized return on invested tax dollars support the concept 
of a paid position. 

 
Questions to Answer:  
 
1. What would be the primary responsibilities of this position?  
2. How would this position be initially funded? 
3. How would this position be sustained? 
4. Who would this position report to? 
5. Other? 

 
 
 Budget implications 
 
 The KCC budget includes the operation of the KCC and recreation department.  Its development is the 

responsibility of Janice as the department head.  The KCC BOD to date has played a limited role in development of 
the budget for a variety of reasons. 

 
 Major infrastructure improvements are not typically included in the regular operating budget; instead those items 

become part of the town-wide Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).  A standing committee develops the CIP and 
works with department heads, town manager, other staff and the Town Council. 

 
 Typically the Town Council sets a percentage growth cap on all department budgets in order to limit increases to 

the tax rate.  This percentage gap is based on the previous year which makes it difficult to adapt to changing 
conditions or expansion opportunities primarily because in most cases the budget must maintain much of the 
operational costs from the previous budget plus inflation. 

 
 The challenge for the KCC is that the new center is still evolving bringing with it new opportunities, lessons learned 

and unanticipated expenses that could better maximize investment of tax dollars, improve operations and 
generate more revenue long-term. 



Kittery Community Center ∙ Arts & Culture Workshop  Discussion Guide 1-9-16 

Page 5 
 

 
Questions to Answer:  
 
1. How do the ideas generated today impact the operating budget of the KCC?  
2. In what ways could the KCC BOD play a more effective role in the budget process? 
3. How do we better state the improvement to operations, customer experience and increase revenues that are 

possible with certain cost increases? 
4. How does HLS, Inc. funding enter into the budget process? – Revenue to offset expenses? – Treat it like a grant? 
5. Other? 

 
 
 Other topics as identified by the group; as time allows 

 
 
 
12:45pm Wrap Up – Next Steps 
 
 
1:00pm  Adjourn 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



KCC Arts & Culture  January 9, 2016 Workshop Meeting Notes 

Page 1 of 6 

Kittery Community Center 2020 Strategic Planning 
Arts & Culture January 9, 2016 Workshop Notes 

 
The KCC Board of Directors, members of the Arts & Culture Committee and Harbor Light Stage Board of 
Directors convened to explore the current and future needs of the arts and culture offerings at the KCC.  
Participants: 
 
KCC Board/Staff: Steve Workman, Jeff Thomson (town council rep.) *Maureen Convery, Mark Schremmer, Mike 
Downs, Janice Grady (KCC Director) Nancy Colbert Puff (town manager) *Jean Lincoln, Dot Avery, *Kent 
Stephens, Todd Henley (Recreation Supervisor) 
A&C Committee: Tom Clark, *Maureen Convery, *Jean Lincoln, *Kent Stephens, Anne Kazazis, Ann Morgan, 
Donnajean Ahigian,  
Harbor Light Stage Board: *Kent Stephens, Vance Morgan 
*Denotes representation on multiple boards/committees 
 
Facilitator: Steve Workman 
 
KCC Arts & Culture Spotlight 
 
Before starting to plan for the future of arts & cultural activities at the KCC participants were asked to take 
inventory of what has been accomplished to date using the following group brainstorming activity:   As quickly 
as possible and with no editorializing, the group will take turns adding one art and cultural related 
accomplishment has happened since the KCC opened.  This should include organizational development, projects, 
collaborations, awards, etc.  The focus of this activity is the organization itself without regard to personal 
participation or judgment. 
 
Participants generated the following responses:  
 
 Star Theatre opened 
 Award winning theatrical productions 
 Local recognition and traction 
 Theater experience improvements 
 Theater poster boxes in lobby 
 Morgan Gallery opened 
 Added track lighting in gallery 
 Many shows already held in the gallery 
 Kittery Land Trust exhibit & lecture 
 Thresher Memorial exhibit & lectures 
 Artist lectures 
 Theater Projector & screen 
 Movie series  
 Established facility & alcohol use policies 
 Facility used for: 

• Wedding and social functions 
• Professional meetings/trainings 
• Nonprofit & community fundraisers 
• Award banquets 
• Memorial services 
• PNSY Change of Command Ceremonies 

• Public Meetings (MDOT, representatives, 
voting, etc.) 

 Concerts 
 Comedy shows 
 Launched lecture series 
 Integrated artistic activities with the schools 
 Hosted Piscataqua Arts & Culture Association 

(PACA) 
 The Arts & Culture Committee 
 Relationship with Harbor Light Stage, Inc. 
 Patrick Dorrow Productions 
 Threshold Stage Company 
 Stage Force 
 Stranger Than Fiction 
 Portsmouth Music & Arts Center (PMAC) 
 Van Gogh touring show 
 Library programs held at KCC 
 Collaboration with Kittery Art Association 
 Collaboration with Greater York Region Chamber 

of Commerce 
 2015 Home Show 

 
 



KCC Arts & Culture SWOC Analysis  January 9, 2016 Board Workshop 

Page 2 of 6 

Arts & Culture SWOC Analysis 
SWOC stands for Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Challenges (threats). This analysis is a useful preliminary step in the 
strategic planning process because it helps groups to develop an honest inventory of the current reality inside and outside an 
organization. The SWOC analysis essentially provides a stepping stone to developing a strength-based strategic plan rather than the 
traditional deficiency based planning model.  It helps you ask, and answer, the following questions: How do you: Make the most of 
your strengths; Circumvent your weaknesses; Capitalize on your opportunities; Manage your Challenges (threats)? 
 
The group answered the following questions, round-robin style: 
 
1. What are the strengths of the KCC A&C offerings as they exist now? 
2. What are the weaknesses of the KCC A&C offerings as they exist now? 
3. What are the opportunities that exist for the KCC to further its A&C offerings? 
4. What are the challenges that the KCC will have to overcome to be successful creating a vibrant A&C program? 

 
Strengths 
 
 KCC Board, A&C Committee & Staff 

• Todd participation in Arts & Culture Committee 
• Custodians very supportive/helpful 
• Janice listens, adapts to change, etc. 
• Open to change/new things 
• Experience and background of members 
• Dedication & passion 
• Connection to artists & organizations 
• Commitment & passion 
• Can-do attitude to make things happen at KCC 
• Seeks public input/feedback 
• Willing to consider wide diversity of programs 
• Open to new trying 
• Kent Stephens as glue and driving force behind arts & 

cultural component at KCC 
• Town officials built into operating structure of KCC 

provides good support and communication 
 Effort to increase number of people using the KCC 
 Arts & culture is another form of recreation 
 Build it and THEY CAME! 
 KCC is the role model for other communities 
 Kittery is ahead of the curve/trend….Finally!!! 
 Community support for KCC and arts/cultural activities 
 Shows that Kittery is a vital, vibrant community 
 New relationship with Harbor Light Stage will allow us to 

more effectively raise money 
 The KCC Facility  

• Natural design of facility 
• Star Theatre is dynamic and flexible space 
• Contextualization of arts & culture within larger KCC 
• Attached to recreation components of facility 
• Only facility in ME & NH that blends arts and culture 

with recreation, physical fitness, etc. 
• Location in Greater Seacoast - Regional attraction  
• Onsite parking 

 Transition of walls into the Morgan Gallery 
 Arts & Cultural Programming (Shows, etc.) 

• Gift and resource  
• Diversity of offerings (lectures, musicals to lasers) 
• Appeal of offerings to diverse ages, interests, etc. 

• Repeat attendance at different offerings 
• Recognition of quality programs/shows/etc at KCC 
• Recognition of school programs as an asset 

 Relationship with and offerings from local artists 
 

 
Weaknesses 
 
 For some the context of the theater within the KCC is a 

turn-off (proximity to the gym) 
 Lack of clarity for board and committee roles with regard to 

arts and culture at the KCC 
 Communication between board, committees and staff 
 Publicity/marketing improving, but more is needed 
 No line item in the operating budget for arts and culture 

related activities expenses, but there are revenue 
expectations 

 Need a budget line item for theater operations 
 Need to show how expenses/investments in operations at 

KCC will yield a higher return in revenues 
 Over-reliance on volunteers for logistical related work 
 Lack of a dedicated marketing/promotional arm of the KCC 
 Need for specialized skills 
 Staff time limited to address identified needs because of 

existing workload 
 Programming is one part of Todd’s job so limited 
 Demands on staff time limit ability to do “deep work” 
 Communication and programming that fit the young, 

working parent(s) family’s schedules, needs and finances 
 Vitally important to work out relationship with library and 

design of new library to avoid duplication and identify 
opportunities for shared resources, etc. 

 A way to offer more of our resources to other communities 
to promote shared resources over the needing “our own” 
approach 

 Limited parking during peak demand 
 Website content and structure 
 KCC e-list is inconsistent as not all receive e-blasts   
 
 



KCC Arts & Culture SWOC Analysis  January 9, 2016 Board Workshop 

Page 3 of 6 

Opportunities 
 
 Having a representative from the school community on KCC 

boards and committees 
 Review KCC website for improvements:  A&C presence, 

ease of finding events, current content, etc. 
 Wall space throughout facility to support arts & culture 

•  Rotating murals on certain wall panels done by artists 
• Informal (non-Morgan Gallery) art displays throughout 

building with emphasis on community & youth visual 
art displays 

• Commemorative photos of past shows in the Star 
Theatre   

 Increased collaboration with artistic organizations & artists 
• Assist as curators for shows at KCC 
• Foster a spirit of interdependence over individual 

interests (“rising tide floats all boats” concept) 
• Partnership/collaboration with the Music Hall 

especially when overflow occurs at the MH Loft 
 Increased use of KCC kitchen 

• To support all shows in the theater 
• Maker Space and/or home for chefs, etc. 
• Partner with people who could help culinary start-ups 
• “Taste of” Events 

 Use of East Wing (annex) space 
 Town public access Channels 22 & 98 need a studio and 

have dedicated funding 
 More arts education for youth – helps promote life-long 

interest in arts & culture at KCC 
 Find more local artists willing to teach classes 
 Increase movie series or individual showings 
 Increase daytime use of the facility – what is the target 

audience for achieving this? 
 Diversified arts & cultural offerings at KCC 
 Promoting events at the KCC: e-list blasts, Twitter, 

Facebook, Instagram, etc. 
 Half the seats in the Star Theatre are not named yet 

($200/seat) 
 Establish a subsidized ticket program to make access to arts 

and cultural events possible for all  
 

Challenges 
 
 Duplication of similar facilities in surrounding communities 

raises sustainability issues for each individual facility 
 Seacoast becoming culturally over-built creating 

competition for content, audiences, funding and 
willingness to travel throughout the region 

 Each artistic organization seems to want its own identity 
and space making collaboration difficult 

 Some residents view KCC as a drain on taxes 
 Some residents do not feel a connection to the KCC and/or 

see the need for it 
 Striking an appropriate balance between revenue increases 

and expenses to effectively operate the KCC and in context 
with other competing needs (school and the rest of the 
municipal budget) 

 The common misconception that the KCC was to be (by 
mandate) self-sustaining 

 Communication with schools regarding facility use, 
availability and programming 

 Accessing/attracting the young, married family 
demographic against the backdrop of their limited money, 
time and communication preferences  

 Capacity of the KCC to meet the diverse needs and desires 
of the community at large 

 

 
 
Deep Discussion Questions 

 
The next segment of the workshop focused almost exclusively on developing the mechanisms/infrastructure that will be 
required to advance the arts and cultural opportunities at the KCC.  Four discussion topics were identified: Structure and 
Role of the Arts & Culture Committee; Role and Relationship with Harbor Light Stage and the KCC; Arts & Cultural Staff 
Position; and Budget Implications Related to Arts & Culture at KCC.  Discussion was allowed to flow freely across the 
discussion topics as they often were inter-related.  While some discussion around budget implications occurred there 
was not enough time to thoroughly address the topic.  The following are summary points captured during the discussion 
that have been organized under topics to make it easier to follow what transpired during the workshop.   
 
 
 



KCC Arts & Culture SWOC Analysis  January 9, 2016 Board Workshop 

Page 4 of 6 

Harbor Light Stage, Inc. 
 
Kent updated the group on the transition of HLS from being Stage Force focused to serving in a fundraising capacity to 
support arts & culture activities at the KCC: 
 
 Trying to organize the first meeting of the new Board in late January 
 HLS might adopt an assumed name 
 HLS to function as “Gringott’s Wizarding Bank” or the “Iron Bank of Braavos” 

• Independent 501(c)3 
• No direct connection/report with the town 
• HLS BOD will establish funding priorities based on KCC requests 

 The KCC BOD chair will serve as an ex-officio on the HLS BOD 
 HLS will do grant writing as needed 
 HLS will accept donations to support KCC 
 Ongoing operating support is difficult, but capacity building grants are easier to secure 
 
The KCC Board and the HLS Board will formerly work out a memorandum of understanding that outlines the 
relationship, rights, and responsibilities as the organizational development work proceeds 
 
General Comments 
 
 Broad topic of arts and culture at the KCC needs to be comprehensive and involve all boards and committees 
 Board and committee members serve as KCC ambassadors and public relation touch points 
 Board & committee members have connections in different sectors which should be used to help with KCC mission 
 Bulk of the A&C Committee’s work has been on the Morgan Gallery 
 Should the A&C be refocused to visual arts? 
 Specialization should be based on experience and connections 
 Board & committee members should provide program and services recommendations to KCC staff 
 The Hyannis Youth & Community Center on Cape Cod is similar to KCC which was featured on Chronicle might be a 

good contact to see how they work (does not include a theater).  They do appear to have a dedicated marketing arm. 
 Potential of theater and gallery being limited by funding and staffing 
 What are the measures of success at the KCC? 
 Empty space ok or need to be at full capacity all the time? 
 Do strengths take space from weaker components? 
 Paid verse free programs, services? 
 Balance of ticketed events and free or pay-what-you-can in the use mix (borrowing some from the Prescott Park 

model) 
 Allocate equal space for program mission components 
 Sufficient diversity to draw diverse citizenry: it can't all be “World Council” lectures, or parents of performing arts 

students wanting to see their kids on stage; 
 Who are we not reaching and what programming do they want/need? 
 Communications about what is available, when, for whom is huge: we are still laboring under a lack of widespread 

familiarity with this great resource in the community - probably our biggest challenge 
 Arts and culture have intrinsic value for a community; they don't need to justify their right to exist. 
 Arts and culture events unite a community and create collective identity, pride, and joy, they bring people together in 

the flesh and in so doing build the music of human empathy, they attract consumers from outside the community who 
enrich it as visitors and they make the place a more attractive and enriching place to live, thereby attracting new 
residents and taxpayers.  

 
 
 
 



KCC Arts & Culture SWOC Analysis  January 9, 2016 Board Workshop 

Page 5 of 6 

Benchmarks of Success for the Star Theatre 
 
A preliminary discussion took place about what benchmarks would indicate success of the Star Theatre.    It was 
acknowledged that the Star had achieved a level of success, but also that individuals had different opinions of what 
constituted optimal success, etc.   It was agreed that evaluation and measurement was critical to the successful 
operation of the Star (and whole facility) and that this needed to be further studied by the KCC Board.  
 
The following were identified as possible indicators of success: 
 
 Diverse programming: spoken word, music, drama, etc. 
 The number of seats filled at shows 
 Number of days the theater is being used for its primary purpose 
 Self sustaining 
 Percent of Kittery residents that attend a performance 
 Number of offerings in a year 
 KCC acknowledged as center of community life 

 
 
Proposed KCC Arts & Cultural Staff Position 
 
 Applicant needs to have arts and culture background/experience 
 Applicant needs to be savvy and experienced in marketing and promotion 
 Focus of position would be on curating, promotion, logistics of: 

• Lectures 
• Concerts 
• Performances 
• Movies 
• Art Shows  

 KCC BOD not blind to the cost of such a position, but aware of the value it would bring 
 Position would be part-time to start 
 Supervision would be responsibility of KCC Director, but would work with the KCC BOD and A&C committee(s)  
 
 
Re-organization of the Arts & Culture Committee(s) 
 
Based on discussion to this point it was broadly accepted that the use and structure of KCC committees could be more 
strategic and focused.  Within the broad category of arts and culture the group saw the potential of multiple committees 
some of which may prove to be ad hoc/short term and others long term.  It was noted that the operation of the theater 
was particularly complex and involved a host of organizations, technical expertise and variables that exceeded the 
capacity of the Arts & Culture Committee as it exists to date.  All committees are established as committees of the KCC 
Board and serve at its pleasure and under its guidance.  
 
The following changes were agreed to and will be sent to the KCC Board for further development and implementation 
over the coming months: 
 
Visual Arts Committee 
 
 It was decided that the current Arts & Culture Committee would be restructured as the Visual Arts Committee.  This 

better reflects the work it already does and the majority of the expertise of the existing members.   
 The KCC BOD will develop a more specific charge as well as operating policies, etc. in the coming months 



KCC Arts & Culture SWOC Analysis  January 9, 2016 Board Workshop 

Page 6 of 6 

 It was acknowledged that this change will likely create a transition period where current A&CC members re-evaluate 
their role and/or participation on the new visual arts committee. 
 Responsibilities of the new committee would include: 

• Oversee the Morgan Gallery  
• Oversee the proposed mural painting project in the facility 
• Oversee other identify art display spaces in the facility 
• Visual arts education/classes 
• Collaboration with other art organizations 
• Special projects 
• Measure art show success and artist feedback 
• Gather data related to the various art projects/services 

 
Performing Arts 
 
 It was decided that a committee was not currently necessary to support the operation of the theater, but that periodic 

meetings of theater users, production companies, etc. would be helpful and will be convened by the KCC BOD. 
 Existing staff, Board oversight and other stakeholders would continue to serve the purpose that a committee would 

have 
 The above does not limit input related to the theater or performing arts at KCC by anyone whether on a board, 

committee or otherwise. 
 
Other Cultural Activities 
 
It was decided that ad hoc committees should be established around different initiatives as needed and when there is 
sufficient energy to move forward.  For example, it was noted that a committee focused on food and use of the Kitchen 
could be useful and could umbrella initiatives such as maker space, community garden, adult education cooking classes, 
etc. 
 
 
 
 





 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 

R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  C O U N C I L  
 

Meeting Date: November 25, 2019 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

CC: Housing Working Group 

Subject: Due Diligence – Affordable Housing Feasibility at Cole Street 

Councilor Sponsor: Vice Chair Matt Brock 

 
 
The Town Council requested, at its Workshop on January 14, 2019, the Housing Working Group 
investigate the possibility of using the old Recreation Center site at Cole Street for an affordable 
housing project.  Below are the results of the due diligence conducted in response to that request. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Town of Kittery’s Comprehensive Plan identifies the need for affordable housing for 
younger single-person and family households, as well as the growing senior population, to 
maintain the Town’s workforce, stimulate economic development, and support individuals living 
in Kittery throughout their lifecycle.   
 
The Housing Working Group (HWG) is committed to advancing the Comp Plan goal of 
increasing the availability of affordable housing in Kittery.  In addition to proposing affordable 
housing zoning, the HWG also is committed to identifying appropriate sites for affordable 
housing developments. 
 
The Cole Street site has a number of beneficial characteristics for an affordable housing project.  
However, the current deed restriction serves as a significant barrier to making a project happen in 
the short term.  In light of this, the Housing Working Group does not recommend actively 
pursuing this site for an affordable housing project at this time.   
 
The HWG is focusing on developing zoning amendment proposals to incentivize affordable 
housing along the Mall Road and Bypass.  Various properties on these key corridors may be 
considered for redevelopment in the near future.  Having zoning that advances the town’s 
affordable housing goals for these areas, will be key to capitalizing on the future redevelopment 
opportunities. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On January 14, 2019, the HWG presented to the Council a report on its workforce housing 
charrette, conducted with the Seacoast Workforce Housing Coalition.   



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL   MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 25, 2019 

2 

 

 
The charrette focused on the Walker Fire Station location as a possible site for an affordable 
housing project and engaged a great deal of volunteers and residents in considering how an 
affordable housing project may work on that site and in Kittery generally.  For more information 
about the charrette and the report, please visit kitteryme.gov and look for 
Inclusionary/Workforce Housing on the Projects Tab.   
 
The report was presented to the Council in a workshop format.  At that workshop, members of 
the Council suggested the Cole Street site may be a better location for affordable housing.  The 
Cole Street parcel contains the old Recreation building, Emery Field and Emery Field park.  To 
note, the original suggestion proposed reusing the old Recreation building.  This was not deemed 
to be feasible given the amount of reconstruction, remediation, and alteration needed to the 
building. 
 
At the conclusion of the workshop, the Council directed the Town Manager to work with Vice 
Chairperson Brock and the Housing Working Group, to evaluate the Cole Street site as a 
candidate for an affordable housing project.   
 
ANALYSIS PARAMETERS 
The analysis focused on the portion of land currently occupied by the old Recreation building.  In 
considering the site, the following were considered to be limiting parameters and not up for 
consideration: 

‐ The majority of the parcel will remain recreational space. 
‐ A phase 2 project for Emery Field will still be pursued and must still include: 

o Adequate parking to support the new playing field 
o Additional passive and active recreational opportunities 
o Completion of the walking path 

The due diligence analysis focused on a few specific questions.  For all of these, the “site” is the 
limited section of the parcel generally containing the old recreation building (see Image A): 

1) How does the existing deed impact or limit the ability to build an affordable housing 
project? 

2) How does the recreation space designation from the Land and Water Conservation Fund 
impact or limit the ability to build an affordable housing project? 

3) Does the current zoning ordinance support an affordable housing project? 
4) Is the site large enough to support an affordable housing project? 

Town Attorney Duncan McEachern was asked to opine on the deed and associated restrictions, 
and Richard Shaney, of Drummond and Woodsum was sought to opine on whether a project 
could be pursued within the confines of the deed restriction.  The Town staff also worked with 
Weston and Sampson, the project engineers for Emery Field park, to gather details about the 
Emery Field Phase 2 design and the impacts on the site.  Finally, the Town utilized the expertise 
of Community Housing of Maine to assess the viability of an affordable project on the site. 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL   MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 25, 2019 

3 

 

 
The due diligence did not address the policy position of the Kittery Town Council.  It also did 
not include analysis of the public sentiment, political will, or neighborhood support/opposition 
to such a project.  It is recognized that these are equally critical factors in making an affordable 
housing project succeed on the site.  The directive from the Council was to determine the 
logistical opportunities and limitations not political or policy will. 
   
DEED 
The Town invested a great deal of effort in resolving issues related to the deed for Cole Street in 
2000.  At that time, the Town was looking to expand the Recreation building on the parcel.  The 
deed, given by the Public Housing Administration to the Town on March 3, 1949, does contain a 
restriction requiring that the land be used for “public use and for no other use or purpose 
whatsoever”.   
 
This was in place when the Town turned over the land to the Wallingford-Harris American 
Legion Post in June of 1949.  It remained in place when the land was abandoned by the American 
Legion.  (see attached Town Attorney opinion) 
 
It is often found that affordable housing is a “public benefit”, so additional analysis was done to 
determine if “pubic use” could be seen as synonymous with public benefit.  The Town engaged 
an attorney with extensive affordable housing expertise in Maine, Attorney Richard Shaney of 
Drummond and Woodsum, to provide additional information.  He opinioned that “public good” 
and “public use” in some cases may be considered compatible, but the restriction would not be 
seen as synonymous by an investor or lender financing an affordable housing project.  The Town 
may be able to make an argument that it is for public use, if the Town intended to build and 
operate the housing a Town function. 
 
Attorney Shaney concluded that relief or revision of the deed restriction would be necessary to 
pursue an affordable housing project funded and operated by a private or non-profit entity.   
 
The successor of interest for the deed restriction is the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD).  (see attached Attorney Shaney opinion).  Given HUD’s mission, 
obtaining such relief might be an achievable goal, but the outcome would be uncertain. 
 
Conclusion: The deed restriction effectively prohibits the use of the site for an affordable 
housing developed and operated by a private or non-profit entity, because it is not for “public 
use”.  The Town could work with HUD and the Legislative Delegation, to seek relief from the 
deed restriction, in the form of removal or modification of the restriction. 
 
RECREATIONAL SPACE DESIGN 
The Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF)has awarded two grants to the Town, totaling 
approximately $202,000 in federal funds, to build, maintain, and enhance the parcel for 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL   MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 25, 2019 

4 

 

recreational uses.  The most recent grant was in 2016, for Emery Field which included the 
construction of a multipurpose playing field and perimeter walking path, for $187,000.   
 
The Town has also applied for an additional grant, for $300,000, to build out Phase 2 of Emery 
Field Park, including the installation of a new playground and courts, enhanced parking, and the 
completion of the perimeter walking path.   
 
With funding from LWCF comes restrictions on the land.  Specifically, these restrictions state, in 
part, “The Facilities shall at all times be used exclusively for public outdoor recreation”.   Douglas 
Beck, Outdoor Recreation Supervisor and our LWCF grant administrator, advised that this 
requirement can be released, if the Town creates recreational space of equal or greater value to 
the recreational space being repurposed, elsewhere in Kittery.  The “value” does not pertain 
specifically to the arms-length sale land value, but the recreational value.  LWCF serves as the 
deciding entity relative to what new recreational space is of equal or greater value.   
 
The Town is looking at the potential future use of the Taylor building among other public land in 
town. The incorporation of a park in the Foreside could be a valuable alternative.  It would 
require the designation of land, and investment in the buildout of a park. 
 
Conclusion: The LWCF grant agreements require the site to be used for recreational purposes.  
The requirements can be modified or released if the Town creates new recreational space of equal 
or greater value elsewhere in Town. 
 
ZONING 
The site is in the Residential Village (R-V) zoning district.  The purpose statement for this zone 
(Title 16.3) states: 

The purpose of the Residential – Village R-V Zone is to recognize the special nature of the Admiralty Village 
neighborhood as a densely developed residential zone composed primarily of affordable housing on small lots serviced 
by sewer and water and to encourage reinvestment in maintaining and upgrading the neighborhood. Consistent with 

this goal, the zone provides for uses that reinforce the residential character and establish building standards that 
allow improvements on typical lots to enhance the residential quality of life in the neighborhood. 

 
Permitted uses include single family and duplex dwellings, and modular homes.  It does not allow 
for multi-family housing (in excess of two units) as permitted or special exception uses.  The zone 
requires 4,000 square feet of land per dwelling unit.   
 
The zone limits maximum structure coverage (primary and accessory buildings, etc.) to 40% of 
the lot, and maximum building coverage to 20% of the lot.  Maximum building height is 35 feet.  
Title 16.8 Design and Performance Standards for Built Environment requires two off-street 
parking spaces per unit (1:2 ratio). 
 
The Housing Working group is developing zoning revisions for a number of zones throughout 
town that would better support affordable housing.  These revisions include increasing net 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL   MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 25, 2019 

5 

 

residential density and available lot coverage, reducing required parking spaces per unit, among 
other factors.    
 
Conclusion: Current zoning requirements for the R-V zone are not conducive to a viable 
affordable housing project.  Relief or revisions from lot coverage, density, height and parking 
requirements would be necessary to make an affordable housing project financially feasible on the 
site. 
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT VIABILITY 
The site being considered is approximately 0.45 acres and represents the “elbow” of Emery Field 
Park.  The site fronts Cole Street and Mason Avenue and contains a significant sloping feature on 
the south/southwest side.  The site also contains wetlands.   
 
The Town asked Community Housing of Maine (CHoM) to do a brief evaluation, looking strictly 
at the available space and the viability of the site as a Low Income Tax Credit (LITC) project; 
which has specific requirements and points for various features.  LITC is an important funding 
resource used to make affordable projects financially viable for the developer/builder.    
 
In the evaluation, the Town learned that it is rare for a LITC project to be approved with less 
than 28 units, or to be approved in remote locations.  Kittery’s socio-economic demographics 
and location suggest an application for a LITC project would be competitive.  The site is also 
expected to score well for LITC due to its proximity to services and jobs and its walkability. 
   
CHoM determined the available upland could allow for up to 36 units, in two-story structure(s).  
The units would be primarily studios and one-bedroom.  The analysis was based on a 100% 
affordable project, meaning all units would be affordable, based on certain income limitations.   
 
The number of units would need to be reduced if family housing was pursued, which requires 
two or more bedrooms.  There would be some anticipated disturbance of the wetlands, but well 
within the “less than 1,500 square feet” threshold the Army Corp of Engineers considers 
acceptable.   
 
There is not sufficient space to fit a two-story project with parking to meet the 1:2 ratio (units to 
parking spaces) currently required in Title 16.  Even if the parking requirement was reduced to a 
1:1 ratio (typically deemed acceptable for a project of this nature), it would still be challenging to 
fit a sufficiently sized project and the required parking on the site.   
 
The project as described above did not undergo a full zoning analysis.  Funding was not allocated 
to design the project, and only through a design effort would it be possible to analyze a project 
relative to specific zoning requirements and limitations.   
 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL   MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 25, 2019 

6 

 

CHoM did some rough financial analysis as well.  Their analysis had to anticipate the Town 
considering one or more the following accommodating steps to make the project financially 
feasible: 

a) Donate the land or provide a no-cost long-term lease 
b) Raze the existing building at the Town’s cost 
c) Enter into a PILOT or other tax relief plan to offset the annual property tax 

assessments 

Conclusion: The site has the potential to fit a viable LITC affordable housing project, if the 
Town is willing to provide certain financial incentives and if zoning regulations are revised or 
relief is given on permitted uses, building height, net residential density, and parking requirements 
for the site.  
  
DUE DILIGENCE CONCLUSION 
An affordable project at the Cole Street site could be possible if effort is made to resolve the 
identified hurdles.   
 
The site’s proximity to services, employment and transportation make it viable for LITC, and 
important federal funding tool for such projects.  The site is in a historically dense neighborhood, 
developed specifically to provide affordable housing options for veterans, servicemembers, and 
shipyard workers. 
 
The following steps would be required, if the Town were to pursue a project at Cole Street: 

‐ Work with HUD to revise or remove the deed restriction.  This would require 
coordination with the legislative delegation and likely state support. 

‐ Identify and invest in developing a recreational space at a location of equal or greater 
value to satisfy the LWCF requirements.  This has a financial impact not currently 
planned for in the Town’s capital improvement plan.  

‐ Revise the zoning to address lot coverage, net-residential density limitations, height 
limitations, and parking requirements, to be more in line with affordable housing projects.  
This would require revisions to Title 16. 

‐ Provide financial incentives to make the projects pro forma work, such as donating or 
leasing the land at no cost, and/or prepping the site. 

The HWG does not recommend advancing on the site at this time, due primarily to the deed 
restriction and its limitations on a project.  

The HWG is focusing on developing proposed zoning amendments to incentivize affordable 
housing along the Mall Road and Bypass.  It will also look at other potential town properties for 
viability as an affordable housing site. 
 















































































From: richard.demarco@ubs.com <richard.demarco@ubs.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2019 2:47 PM 
To: Suzanne Esposito <SEsposito@kitteryme.org> 
Subject: PC membership 
 
Suzanne, 
Page Mead confirmed with me yesterday that he will need to pull back from the Parks Commission. He 
will not be co-chair, but would like to continue to be an associate member 
George Dow would is currently an associate member that would fill his spot. 
Can you tell me the process needed to take care of this. I can share with Page and George. 
Thanks 
Rich 
 
Richard J. DeMarco, Jr 
CEPA, First Vice President, Wealth Advisor 
Direct: 603-422-8190 
www.ubs.com/fa/richarddemarco 
 
Apryl G. Cowper 
Sr. Registered Client Service Associate 
Direct: 603-422-8189 
email: apryl.cowper@ubs.com 
 
    UBS Financial Services 
     40 Congress Street 
     Portsmouth, NH 03801 

mailto:richard.demarco@ubs.com
mailto:richard.demarco@ubs.com
mailto:SEsposito@kitteryme.org
http://www.ubs.com/fa/richarddemarco
mailto:apryl.cowper@ubs.com

	KCC Strategic Plan Board Adopted 8-21-19 (1).pdf
	KCC 2019 Strategic Plan Apendix A.pdf
	KCC Visioning Session Invite 2013 PDF
	Discussion Guide - KCC 2020 Listening Sessions 6-2013
	Participant Responses KCC Vision Voting Etc 6-2013
	Vision Attendance Logs
	Traip Student Workshop Discussion Guide 5-29-13
	Youth Responses KCC Vision Workshop 5-29-13
	Participant Responses KCC Vision Voting Etc 6-2013
	Survey Announcement post cards
	KCC 2020 Vision Community Survey Results 8-18-13

	KCC 2019 Strategic Plan Appendix B.pdf
	Discussion Guide - KCC Retreat - 1-31-15
	SWOC Analysis 1-31-15
	KCC SWOC Analysis by Strategic Plan Section 2015
	Applying SWOC to Section I Facility and Campus
	Applying SWOC to Section II Management
	Applying SWOC to Section III Programming

	Discussion Guide - KCC AC Workshop 1-9-16
	A&C Workshop Meeting Notes 1-9-16


	ADP7A4C.tmp
	From: 30TUrichard.demarco@ubs.comU30T <30Trichard.demarco@ubs.com30T>  Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2019 2:47 PM To: Suzanne Esposito <30TSEsposito@kitteryme.org30T> Subject: PC membership

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



